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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.
Joanne Fitzgerald
1855
35

35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg,
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

03 6775 1000

BlackRock Global Investment Series -
Global Allocation Portfolio

500 4,680

500 7,760

2019
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109.36 75.52
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BlackRock Global Investment Series - Global Allocation Portfolio

2019

500 4,680
500 7,760

2019 31
109.36 75.52
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BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited

4/284



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019

2010 12 17
2010
2011
2011 61
2013 12 2013

5/284



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010
BlackRock Global Funds
Global Allocation Fund
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2019 20
2019
BlackRock Fund Management
Company S.A.
2019 17
BlackRock Asset Management
Ireland Limited
2019 17
2019 17
2019 17
State Street Bank Luxembourg
S.C.A.
1996 10
1997
10 13
2002 29
J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg
S.A.
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1998 15
BlackRock Operations
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2016 18
BlackRock Investment
Management (UK) Limited
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50 5,468 2019
12.5 1,367 40,000
1990
2006 10
2019
1855 35
BlackRock Group Limited- 35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-1855 40,000 100.00
Luxembourg Branch Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg
Commission de
Surveillance du Secteur Financier
1134 1710
1779 1787 1984
2002 12 20 2002
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2019 31 2,924,048
2019 31 2,729,111

2019 31 194,937
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2019 31 1,067
2019 31 525,681

41/284



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.885

2016 27 1.78 1.5 0.281
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2019
330,467,385.98 100.25
330,467,385.98 100.25
820,257.13 0.25
329.647,128.85
36,050 100.00
2019

BlackRock Global Funds -
Global Allocation Fund X
Class non-distributing
share

3,345,010.43 | 58.57 | 195,932,812.65 | 67.15| 224,617,450.31 | 68.14

BlackRock Global Funds -
Global Allocation Fund X
Class non-distributing
share AUD hedged

5,348,375.04 | 13.63 | 72,882,646.91 13.28 | 71,044,174.84 | 21.55

BlackRock Global Funds -
Global Allocation Fund X
Class non-distributing
share JPY hedged

3,532,687.32 9.96 | 35,168,512.68 9.85| 34,805,760.83 | 10.56
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10
2019
ALPHABET INC CLASS C 1.5 NESTLE SA 0.9
MICROSOFT CORP 1.4 DANONE SA 0.9
APPLE INC 1.1 ANTHEM INC 0.9
JPMORGAN CHASE Co 1.0 AMAZON COM INC 0.9
COMCAST CORP CLASS A 0.9 10 | EXXON MOBIL CORP 0.9
2019

2019
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2010 20 2016 17

2019

2011 31 128,592,128.05 | 14,062,835,124 11.12 1,216
2012 31 251,756,827.12 | 27,532,126,614 11.10 1,214
(2013 31 205,188,992.17 | 22,439,468,184 11.82 1,293
2014 31 175,576,004.04 | 19,200,991,802 12.76 1,395
2015 31 295,225,104.70 | 32,285,817,450 13.25 1,449
2016 31 316,958,633.62 | 34,662,596,173 12.38 1,354
2017 31 289,263,321.67 | 31,633,836,858 13.60 1,487
2018 31 296,696,326.17 | 32,446,710,230 15.70 1,717
2019 31 245,792,863.19 | 26,879,907,518 14.50 1,586
2018 267,631,002.72 | 29,268,126,457 14.84 1,623
269,260,263.89 | 29,446,302,459 15.08 1,649

265,944,994 .55 | 29,083,744,604 15.09 1,650

263,540,947.27 | 28,820,837,993 15.02 1,643

10 248,028,541.75 | 27,124,401,326 14.30 1,564

11 248,642,554.95 | 27,191,549,809 1443 1,578

12 236,385,076.47 | 25,851,071,963 13.82 1,511

2019 245,792,863.19 | 26,879,907,518 14.50 1,586
244,188,477.35 | 26,704,451,883 14.73 1,611

237,125,895.67 | 25,932,087,950 1481 1,620

232,442,798.87 | 25,419,944,484 15.02 1,643

223,996,389.36 | 24,496,245,140 14.65 1,602

49/284




EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2011 31 37,363,858.17 2,821,718,569 11.26 850
2012 31 53,771,317.24 4,060,809,878 11.53 871
(2013 31 40,614,375.78 3,067,197,659 12.63 954
2014 31 34,240,112.57 2,585,813,301 13.95 1,054
2015 31 48,452,935.06 3,659,165,656 14.81 1,118
2016 31 61,980,569.52 4,680,772,610 14.04 1,060
2017 31 80,466,681.28 6,076,843,770 15.59 1,177
2018 31 108,743,816.21 8,212,333,000 18.05 1,363
2019 31 111,599,069.46 8,427,961,726 16.56 1,251
2018 116,247,897.36 8,779,041,209 17.03 1,286
117,753,936.99 8,892,777,321 17.31 1,307

117,305,275.08 8,858,894,374 17.30 1,306

116,001,349.26 8,760,421,896 17.20 1,299

10 110,463,277.74 8,342,186,735 16.37 1,236

11 109,517,264.53 8,270,743,817 16.50 1,246

12 105,999,439.14 8,005,077,644 15.79 1,192

2019 111,599,069.46 8,427,961,726 16.56 1,251
110,198,909.01 8,322,221,608 16.80 1,269

110,044,105.40 8,310,530,840 16.88 1,275

110,005,517.62 8,307,616,691 17.12 1,293

102,424,321.77 7,735,084,780 16.67 1,259
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2017 31 698,776,280.91 100.18
2018 31 3,782,919,157.89 113.49
2019 31 4,071,752,805.59 102.05
2018 4,807,474,307.44 106.32
4,880,679,186.97 107.82

5,012,359,466.29 107.68

5,153,775,188.60 106.87

10 4,906,192,815.79 101.50

11 4,396,401,809.47 102.23

12 3,960,531,475.75 97.59

2019 4,071,752,805.59 102.05
3,988,076,252.75 103.45

3,973,267,599.63 103.80

3,970,457,986.37 105.10

3,781,258,377.71 102.17
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13,997,009 2,428,897 11,568,112
(13,997,009) (2,428,897) (11,568,112)
4,511,639 1,192,037 3,319,602
(4,511,639) (1,192,037) (3.319,602)
19,271,504 8,151,541 22,688,075
(19,271,504) (8,151,541) (22,688,075)
3,986,080 2,643,534 4,662,148
(3,986,080) (2,643,534) (4,662,148)
1,953,442 7,279,203 17,362,314
(1,953,442) (7.279,203) (17,362,314)

296,337 1,743,547 3,214,938
(296,337) (1,743,547) (3,214,938)
9,286,723 12,893,517 13,755,520
(9,284,929) (12,893,517) (13,753,726)
1,398,495 2,159,067 2,454,366
(1,398,495) (2,159,067) (2,454,366)
14,409,470 5,885,788 22,279,202
14,406,769 5,885,787 22,274,708
1,921,257 1,103,183 3,272,440
1,921,257 1,103,183 3,272,440
9,545,857 6,218,319 25,606,740
9,544,808 6,216,655 25,602,861
2,106,804 964,696 4,414,548
2,106,804 964,696 4,414,548
2,907,061 7,246,085 21,267,716
2,907,061 7,242,206 21,267,716
1,852,137 1,105,740 5,160,945
1,852,137 1,105,740 5,160,945
10,706,132 3,730,721 6,975,411
10,705,102 3,730,721 6,974,381
15,450,896 17,822,349 18,896,263
2,694,046 13,858,311 10,103,451
3,504,291 2,641,139 6,024,097
2,436,190 2,154,582 5,442,553
41,066,602 14,709,545 33,332,468
1,365,477 8,339,858 0
1,963,320 3,913,804 16,945,779
920,451 1,686,900 9,337,002
1,950,930 1,235,892 6,739,135
1,781,536 997,665 6,226,424
18,528,514 11,961,604 39,899,378
0 0 0

2016
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2019 31
109.36 75.52

23 103

23
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37

2019 31
2019 31
337,002,440 36,854,587
28,709,986 3,139,724
2(2) 365,712,426 39,994,311
2(2) 144,485 15,801
2(2) 242,912 26,565
2(2) 75,126 8,216
366,174,949 40,044,892
2(2) 77,387 8,463
2(a) 353,944 38,707
4,5,6,7,8 1,274,995 139,433
1,706,326 186,604
364,468,623 39,858,289
42
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2019 31

2019 31 2018 31 2017 31

( ) ¢ ) ( ) « D ( ) « D
364,468,623 39,858,289 419,552,169 45,882,225 356,660,236 39,004,363

( ) ) ( ) () ( ) ()
14.50 1,586 15.70 1,717 13.60 1,487
( ) () ( ) () ( ) ()
( ) 16.56 1,251 18.05 1,363 15.59 1,177
) () ()
( ) 102.05 113.49 100.18
37 42
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2019 31

419,552,169 45,882,225

2(c) 14,329 1,567
27,398 2,996

41,727 4,563

2,924,048 319,774

2,924,048 319,774

265,163 28,998

21,473 2.348

24,306 2,658

64,586 7,063

97,468 10,659

1,067 117

44,318 4,847

8,367 915

6,374,844 697,153

(6,333,117) (692,590)

2(a),2(b) 10,514,904 1,149,910
2(a),2(b) (281,056) (30,736)
2(d),2(e) (1,052,818) (115,136)
9,181,030 1,004,037
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(45,205,642) (4,943,689)
(592,030) (64,744)

2(d),2(e) (33) Q)
(45,797,705) (5,008,437)

(42,949,792) (4,696,989)

2(h) 73,154,942 8,000,224
2(h) (85,288,696) (9,327,172)
(12,133,754) (1,326,947)

364,468,623 39,858,289
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2019 31
18,896,263 1,963,320 3,913,804 16,945,779
6,024,097 1,950,930 1,235,892 6,739,135
33,332,468 18,528,514 11,961,604 39,899,378

37

42
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2019 31

BlackRock Global Funds - Global

3,834,108 Allocation Fund X Class non-distributing 37,577,191 10.31
share JPY hedged
BlackRock Global Funds - Global

3,730,453 Allocation Fund X Class non-distributing 246,694,832 67.69
share
BlackRock Global Funds - Global
5,903,085 Allocation Fund X Class non-distributing 81,440,403 22.34
share AUD hedged
365,712,426 100.34
365,712,426 100.34
365,712,426 100.34
(1,243,803) (0.39)
364,468,623 100.00
1
( ) ( )
www . blackrock.com
2453
2019 31
)
100.34
100.34
(0.39)
100.00

37 42
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2019 31

9,315,099 2.75
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31

2019
.727650 0.719100
.760312 0.757518
.005379 1.001753
.153760 0.153056
-147900 1.142550
.310999 1.307000
.127447 0.127484
274774 0.272978
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0.014061 0.014054
0.009203 0.009125
0.000899 0.000896
0.052500 0.052252
0.110887 0.110095
0.743163 0.739864
0.032550 0.032522

0.075283 0.073648
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BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined

198,628

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
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1855
49 49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2019 31

2019 31

61,000

2019 17

0.0062
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10
2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01 2019 31
11
12
()
(i)
12
2019 31
65,000,000 2019 31
2018 26,000,000
0.15 FED LIBOR

0.90
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Statement of Net Assets

as at 31 January 2018

Asnats
S OuilES DOrdakd M o0 2318081 573 AT Q02 S40 58,177 460
Unrealized appreciationf{deprecistion] [11,061.332) 38,709,988 i B56 B33
Sepunbes pordobo 38 marke value Ha) 2,308,030,341 55, 712426 104,034,114
Cagh 3 bark a3 11 452,875 144 485 1,211 458
L froem: broker 1§ Gt - 2,
Interest and dividends recehabie Ha) 4 585,210 - 145 384
Fecewable for irestments woid Haj §EEIATY 242812 512534
Fecenabie for Fund units subsonbed it 02,142 75126 =
Linresalisad appesciation o

Futures Contracis i 154 - -
Ctteer Bgsets 128,760 - 853
Total assuts 2700154 443 FEE, 174 540 108,508 361
Liahilitles
Cash owed to bank Ha) 239,378 - -
Ougstanding loan 12 - - -
Paryatile for unfunded laan 65 198,678 B -
Payabie Tor investments purthased a) B/53045%5 TT.387 1,312,835
Payable Tor Fund units rede emed bt 1] 1 038 568 353844 BRI
Dwvidands payabie Hal 2 403 853 = =
Unreatised depreciation on

Crpen fansarnd forsign exchange Barmachons 2 68801 - -
Svaps o arked vslue A 24 810 - -
Aeerued epeeges aod other §abknes 456748 4 574 530 1,274,895 277 .58
Tottal liabilities 19 270,202 1,706,326 1,938 092
Total et aes el 2370 554 200 364 466,623 103,965 269

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Management Company

e O™\

Ovector
oae 2 3 MAY 2019 Dae 2 3 MAY 2019

Tt nobea on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these finanond stalemeat
[10] BlackRock Global Investment Series
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Statement of Net Assets

as at 31 January 2019 continued

Aszets
e oS pordobo M oo 371 B33 147B554 113 31524 287
Unrealised appreciation/{deprecistion) (42,053 80T} - {2584 145)
Securities pordoka 3 rarkel value ) 328,768.435 1478554113 6,550,152
Cash 3L bark a3 10,056,730 - 40,2654
Cue froem boker L] SER - -
Inderest and dradends recesabls HAa) JBRT AN 662258 a0, 165
Recetvabie for ime stments sold Haj 4803 067 - 4318
Fecenais for Fund unis subscnbed Wal 107 EIG - -
Unrealised appeatianon on

Fuufe & Conracs ] 154 - -
Carer assats 19,065 108,343 -
Total asswts 8,604,008 1480,324,711 29084974
Liabilities.
Cash owed to bank Hal - 83T -
Cutstanding foan 12 - - -
Payatie for unfunded loan 1 128,678 = 5
Pyt for iirvisstrssnts purchasid ) 7,040,373 - =
Payable for Fund unds redeered 3] 331 58T - 4754
Cradends payable bt ] 1,565 052 1887207 41603
LUngadised depreciafon on

Cpen fonwand foreign exchange tansadions L] E8.501 - -
Swaps o market value ) 74,818 m -
drerued enpenses and other kabdtes 45678 1,858,551 1,766,207 180,403
Total liabilities 10,806 921 453,513 244,350
Tatal met ans ety 338,167 58T TATEA31, 188 26,550, 564

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these financol statemeats.
Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [11]
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2019

Glebal Allecation Portfollo
Total nat ass wte usD 418 552,160 FE6.650.238
Bl asset value per
i, Class non-distrbiting und UsD 14 50 1570 13.60
A Class non-dratributing unit &UI0 AU 16.58 1B05 15.58
A Class non-drstribulng uni JFY JFY 10205 1348 10018
Glebal Equity Income Portfolie
Total net asd et uso 183,966 265 131,523,008 141472570
Hel assed value per
A Class disiribubng uni usD 1337 1543 13.00
F Class deifribabig und uso 1518 1745 1458
Income Strategies Partfalle
Tatal nat ass et ED 30,167 547 TEE T ATE 413537 543
et st value per
& Ciass distriubng ung uso 538 572 HB4
A Class distrivubng uni S50 hedged SG0D wmn B3 10.80
AL Clats digtbuting unt uso By o7E B.63
B Clasa distibuting url s 5ar T3 585
C Class destrintenp urel uso am 1k 10,18
J Class distnbuting und uso 53 562 562
Super Money Markel Fund
Total nat assets [0 14TE 421,188 4,388 82 11T 1,337 B4 002
Het atoet value per
Cormrmon diibubng umt uso 100 L.od L.00
Current di fnibibng urid uso Lo 100 1.00
Irrstgerional | desiributng L usp L 100 1.00
Warld Income Partfalia
Total net assets LD 28,850, 564 35, TEY, 108 45 S04 529
Bt asiet value per
A Clases desiribubig und uso o 1118 1062
A Class grsriuting und ALD AUD {1 k=] LR e 10,85
A Class disirlubng un EUR EUR G40 ot .02

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these financol statemeats.
[12] BlackRock Global Investment Series

90/284



EDINETOOOO
O0OO00O0000000000o00o0noo0o0ogogodnoOn(es187)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2019

Het assets at the beginning of the year 2,260,056 873 419,552,168 121,523,008
Income
Bank inlirgs Hep B 825 304 12302 -
Bond and loan irtenssa Aeh 45,588,271 - -
Dnvidderats (req of withhadding L) Aoy 4828177 - 3578 469
Caronr inome 2738 o] -
Total incema 59,043,180 a7 D828 465
Expanses
Bk imerest Heh 4392 - 103
Misnagernert fegs 4 134T 1424 280 DaE 3483
Dhestritetionn fess ] 7580130 2,824 4@ MEIA83
Aderaresirabion fees B 107485 265 163 68,085
Auditees T 156656 ATH 14 465
Legal fees ngoar 4 308 11,258
Prriting and other reporting fees 270955 B4 588 .0
Suby seripon tio 10 351,355 - 27,244
Coordination fees - 556,599 a7 A68 10,878
Depogitary feed B 571,538 § 067 118,863
Teareher agent fess 5B AL 44 318 2.9
Laan commitrrent fees 12 Eal o - -
MncHlineous fens ELEAE BI8T 11 861
Total expenses before reimbursement 24,054 532 B A74 B4 BT0 307
Fernbursement of Epensss 4 3192095 - -
Tetal axpans &t afper réimburssment 20802438 6374 Gl BT0 307
et imvestment incomat{deficit) 3,140,714 B33 41T 2,558 182
Fealised gain on bmestments 2[ak 2o B A5 1TT 10,514 904 ez
Fealised (oss] on Investrents a). Amy (10es0mE) (290 056) [FAErE -]
Met realized gand lossh on
Futsres Contracts Hdy {1.526) = =
Foreign curmenoes and fansamd loreign eschangs irarmscton (). 2Hed {1 2aB w81y {1,052 818 {1,248 587)
Ot coniracts d) {5.EE0) - -
S0 DSBS 2y 29253) - -
Hat reall sed gainiloss) for the year NB25.129 5,181,030 4,085,768
Cnange in wreealised APPReciaton on lmesments (13038 2T} 145,205 843 (18523 910)
{Change in uneesdised {depreciabon] on investments (18982 F03) (552 0300 [LReb kT
Met change in unreaksed appreciationf{depreciation ] an
Fareign curmences and fanward loreign evchange transachons Hd). 2He) 241 0128 {33 {3,100}
Fubieme s Conlracts 2d} 154 - -
Swap FarEBnons 2d) {7 =3y - -
Crpieonis Coniraces 20d) o] - -
Net changs in unrealised apprecisdon{depreciaten) for the year {1,587 551) (45,747, Tos) {20.516887 )
Inreas ei{Dacranss] In met assets as 3 result of sperations 142,022,108} (42949, 7492} {14,162 557}
Movements In unit capital
T PecEpts 35 & resul of istue of urels 2(h} ZATT. T3 442 73,154,842 4,518,797
Met payments 5 8 resul of repurchase of unis h) [2435.738 454) (85,188 888) (34 818 3549)
Increas eifDecrease] in met assets as 3 result of mavements inunit capltal 41551 558 (12,433,764 {90,302 562}
Disnderds deciansd n (A0 B2 518) - (3085, 231
MHat assats at the end of the year 2300554 241 I LG8 62T 103,965 268

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these financol statemeats.
Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [13]
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 231 January 2019 continued

Hat assets af the beginning of the year 384,857,875 1386832717 36,761,108
Inzome
Bank interest He) - 8,808 242 1,133
Bond & loan intéress Aed ¥ 595 818 2AT452 =
Dirviddiards {reed of wilhhvoldng L) Ae) - - §,092,708
Ot mCome = = -
Total inceme 22,555,815 31,781,654 1,084 481
Expenses
Bk nieress Aed 4,789 = -
Managemert fees 4 2198415 6828308 158,164
Duestritmtion fees i 1214 84T 2381141 05 82D
Adrewtirabon fees 3 511,382 |83 76X 51,083
Al ey T 58,741 46233 19024
Legal fees 121,83 41,172 18,543
Prnting and other reporing fees: 11,755 BO3% &5 053
Hubscrpton i 10 177,135 148577 =
Coondsnation fees 5 9.517 asern 18049
Depotary fees a 275,741 15217 3ama
Trarher agent Teed 105,251 173415 12429
LOAN COMrement faes 12 308,452 - -
Miscefianecus fees «0, 151 T35 Th, 104
Total expenses before reimbursement 8715128 10,505 834 AN
Femburseirent of expentet 4 - 3,182 006 -
Total exp after reimbaur BI5,128 T30 A2
et investment incom o (deficit) 16,881, 553 24 46T G55 455 020
Frnlitad e on bneslmentd Hal, o) B, 258,002 12,183 154,861
Fealised [loss) on Imvestmerts Ha). 2w} {6.420,009) (1554) (74 53g)
ket realieed gand loss)ion
Futunes Contracts Hd) {1.926) - -
Foreign curmenoes and fonward foreign exchange transacions d). He) 721,528 - {258, 405)
Cptains Conlracts d) (5, ey = =
Swap AN EAENONS 2d) {29,853) - =
et reabised gaini{loss) for the year (1477, 145) 10,638 273,962}
(hange f weelsed SPOFECECN O | mements (10,998 654) - {300,581)
Change in urrealised (depreci sbon] on Investments. (10 548 65T) - (2353 829)
et change in unrealised appreciabond{depeeciabon) on
Foreign currences and fanward foreign exchange transactons Hdp, 2ed 44 168 - (6ay
Future s Confracts Hd) 154 = -
Sy BAN SRCHONE d) (7,838) - -
Cfadrs Conracs 2(d) a8z - -
Hat chamge in unrealis ed apprecivdoni{depreciztion) for the year (22,308,925} - 2,664 430
Inere el roxs o] Im Mot 2950t 25 3 result of sperations [6.904 352) 24478 595 {2477 5T2)
Movements In unit capital
Met recempls a5 3 result of ssue of unis 2hj A1 244 907 22337170447 U B4 348
et pryrmerts as @ resull of repurcharse of unis L f] (B0, 785400) | (2.248,570 988) (5.274)033)
Inereanai{Das reas o] in met asaets a8 3 result of movemsants inunit capital (20,540,453} 83598481 (3,629 584)
Orviderds daclansd 1" (21.2T5414) |24 TR 505) B3, 284
et assots at the end of the year J30, 16T ST 1,475 431,150 20,850 564

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these financol statemeats.
[14] BlackRock Global Investment Series
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Statement of Changes in units Outstanding
as at 31 January 2019

Glebal Allecation Portfalle

A Class nin-charituting usl VB.B36, 263 1 BE3 320 3913604 18,845,778
& Class non-isribating uml ALID B4 87 1850930 (e o 8,739,035
A Closs non-cistriouting um JY e IB5m514 10561 B4 R
Global Equity Income Portfalie

A& Class dainiuting unt 3,355 488 ATEEN BERTH 1863347
F Class chsfritnting unt 4,570,524 1,106,964 1,330,883 4, MERIS
Income Strategies Portfollo

& Clats detirinitng Lt B 55 0= 455 6a4 1272811 8,182 288
& Claes destritnang unt SG0 hedgped 25 B - N ATE 69,180
A0 Class dhsnbugng unt 524,300 %50 050 50
B Class detnbiging una Bar.am oA 153318 E44 87
C Cliss destnbating und 126,734 4 268 1534 152840
J Class chstritaiting unid 57 108 732 B.7E2275 B3 358 54 566871
Super Money Market Fund

Corrrninn o stribieng i 55 B 6,098 - 361842
Current destributing unt 216,187 407 1,639 268 937 1,765, 762,601 30,7113
Instusional | dsnbuging unt 470390 24 457855 080 4R2 800 633 485 L0913
Warld Incorme Partfalia

i Class destritnting unt 1 BEE 430 13,577 T3 885 1,380,080
& Class destributing urit U0 U B0E, 128 173 6 B2 1444 209
A Class debnibutng und EUR a4 57 116,380 B 7E8 263,130

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these financol statemeats.
Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [16]
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Global Allocation Portfolio

Portfolio of Investments as at 31 January 2019

desnbuting shane JPY hedged AnETTAST w03
3730457 Bleckock Glskhsl Funds - Global

Allocaton Fund ¥ Class non-

deznbuting Shane 240,604 BE2  BTER
5903085  BlackRiock Gickial Funds - Global

Allocassn Fund ¥ Class non.

detnbuting share AUD hedged 81440408 7334

385712426 10034

Total Cobectve Imestment Schemes: FEETNT MG 10034
Securtas pottoso o ranket vakie 365712478 10034
Otfesr Bet Liakeblies (1,243 803} [0.3)
Total Met Aspets (LIS0) AB4488 B3 10000

1 rvdtieronnd in cennichnd ety lund e urier slomniten in Nise 9

The Cobsl Adoeatioe Pariohe mvess v 5 Teedes fund” e tha X Clas of the Glabal Allecalon Fund, & sub-lund of BlackReck Glabsl Furee. Copies of She ol recent Sudded Anrasl Rapent
iind Lichudited balinm Fligan of BladRack abal Fundy (ndldng Glabal Medalun Fusd ¥ Clidd ndn- dilnBiling ihies Y hadged bnd X Cligd nén-deinbotng shan A0 badgad) ans
il abib v e blinthe o K E0mh 0f pon requini bl The regnaened oo of SlackRedk Glial Fusds and fom the local BlackReck ivettee o bearn. The regratesed offiie of BackReck
(obad Fusds i ot 24 naw Eugdrs Rugpant, L-2453 Lisemioong. Grand Diachy of Lussmbourg

Sector Breakdown

as at 31 January 2019
Colectve Irvestrment Schemas 10034
Seouribes portolo at market value 10024
Carer Net Lighides .

oo

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these financol statemeats.
[16] BlackRock Global Investment Series

94/284



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organisation

BlackRock Global Investment Series (the “Fund’) is a fands
commun de placement formed under the laws of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg. The Fund is set up under Part |l of the
law of 17 December 2010 relating to undertakings for collective
investment as amended (the “2010 Law”), The Fund qualifies
as an alternative investment fund ("AIF") in accordance with
Directive 2011/51/EU of the European Pardiament and of

the Council of 8 June 2011 on Altemative Investment Fund
Managers ("AIFMD”) and the Luxembouwrg law of 12 July 2013
on alternative investment fund managers as amended (the
“2013 Law").

The Management Company is not the alternative imvestment
manager of the Fund. For the period from 1 February 2018 to
16 January 2018, BlackRock Asset Management Schweiz AG
{the “Investment Manager”) had been appointed to perform
portfolio and risk management functions for the Fund, within
the meaning of the AIFMD. Effective 17 January 2018, to
camply with the requirements of the Money Market Funds
Regulation, the Management Company appointed BlackRock
Asszet Management Ireland Limited (the “AIFMT) as the
alternative investment fund manager. The AIFM will provide
and procure the provision of investment management
senices, inchuding portfolio and risk management functions,
for the Fund. The AIFM is entitted to delegate its functions.
powers, discrations, duties and obligations, subject ta AIFMD
requirements.

Az al 31 January 2019, the Fund offered unifs in frve portfolios,
Global Allocation Portfolio, Global Equity Income FPortfolio,
Income Strategies Portfolio, Super Money Market Fund and
Werld Income Portfolio (each a *Partfolio”™ and collectively the
“Portfcios”). Each Portfolio has different investment objectives
and invests in different types of Investments.

Each Portfolio is a separate podd of assets and is represented
by separate units of each Portfolio which are divided into unat
classes as detailed on page 45.

The classes of units have equivalent rights in the Portfolios
but carry different features and charging structures, which
afe more fully described in the Fund's Prospectus,

Significant events during the year

¢ Efective 17 January 2019, the Management Company
appointed the AIFM into its role as the Fund's alternative
invesiment fund manager in compliance with the Money
Marke! Funds Regulation.

¢ A new Prospecius was issued on 17 January 2019,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in Luxembourg
and with the legal and regulatory requirements relating to the
preparation of the financial statements as prescribed by the
Luxembeourg authorities for Luxembourg investment companies
and include the following ssgnificant accounting policies:

(a2} Valuation of Investments and Cther Assels

The Fund's investrments and other assets are valusd
as follows:

Non-Money Market Portfolios

Tesm loans are not listed on any securities exchange. In
determining the Met Asset Value ("MAVT), the Fund utilises
the valuations of term loans fumished by a pricing senvice
approved by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company. The pricing service typically values term koans
at the bid price when quotations are readily available.
Term loans for which quotations are not readily available
are valued at fair market value on a consistent basis as
determined by the pricing service using pricing matrices
to determine valuations. The procedures of the pricing
services and fs evalualions are reviewed by the Investiment
Adviser of the relevant Portfolio (the “Investment Adviser”)
under the general supervision of the Board of Directors of
the Management Company. The Board of Directors of the
Management Company has determined in good faith that
the use of a pricing service is a fair method of determining
the valuation of barm loans;

Porifolic securities consisting of equilies, bonds and other
debt instruments (othes than short-term obligations but
including lsted issues) may be valued on the basis of
prices furnished by ene or more pricing services which
determing prices for normal, institutional-size trading units
of such securities using market information, transactions
for comparable securities and vanous relationships
between securities that are generally recognised by
institutional traders;

Portfolio securities that are listed on stock exchanges or
traded on other regulated markets are valued at the last
knowen price on such exchanges or markets as ofthe close
of the business day immediately preceding the valuation
date with the exception of Global Equity Income Portfolio
for which securities are valued at the valuation date the
last known price as of 4.00 p.m. Luxembourg time {in
each case, the “Relevant Time"). |f there are no such
sales of a particular security, the vabue of such securty
will be the last available bid price of the Relevant Time
of, in certain circumstances, such portfolio secunties are
valued at the last sale price on the exchange that is the
prirmary market for such securities, or the last quoted bid
price for those secunties for which the Cwver-the-Counter
(OTC") market such as NASDAD, is the primary market
for listed securities:

Investrients in open-ended collective investment schemes
are valued on the basis of the last available net asset value
of the units of such collective investment scheme;

Frced incorne securities that are not listed on stock
exchanges or traded on cther regulated markets are
wvalued at the last available bid price or yield equivalents

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [3T]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

obtained fFom one or more dealers of pricing sendices.
Securities traded in the OTC marke! are valued at the lag
avaiable bid price. In cases where securities are traded on
more than one exchange, the securities are valued on the
exchange designated by or under the direction of the Board
of Directors of the Management Company as the primary
market, Portfolio securities that are traded both in the OTC
market and on a stock exchange are valued accordng to
the broadest and most representative market;

*  Securifies and assels for which markel quetalions are nol
readily available are valued at fair value as determined
in good faith by or under the direction of the Board of
Directars of the Management Company.

As at 31 January 2019, the adusted fair value appliad to
certain securties andior dervatives are disclosed in the
table below:

| %ol
Nt
Inceene Strategies Portiotio | wso | asisoss | 275

Please refer to the Portfolio of Investiments section for furthes
datails of the secunities.

Super Money Market Fund

+  The Management Company has established procedures
designed to stabslise. to the extent reasonably possible, the
Super Money Market Fund's price per unit a5 computed for
the purpose of sales and redemptions at one USD;

¢ The Portfolio's undertying secunties and money market
instruments are valued based upon their amorti sed
cost. This involves valuing an instrurment at its cost and
thereafter assuming a constant amorisation bo maturity
of any discount or premium, regardless of the impact
of Buctuating interest rates on the market value of the
instruments. While this methed provides cedainty in
valustion, it may result in periods during which value,
as determined by amorlised cosl, is higher or lower than
the price the Super Money Market Fund would receive
ifit seid the instrument;

+ Holdings are periodically reviewe d by or under the direction
of the Board of Directors of the Management Company
to determine whether a deviation exists between the MY
calculated using market values and that calculated on an
amorised cost basis. In the event it 15 determined that a
deviation exists. which may result in material dilution or
other unfair results to investors or existing Unitholders, the
Management Company takes such cofmective action by or
under the drection of its Board of Directors as is regarded
as necessary and appropriate, incudng the sale of the
portfolio nstruments prior to maturity to realise capital
gains or losses or to shorten average portfolio maturity,
withholding dividends, or establishing a NAV per unit
by using available market values,

B8] BlackRock Global Investment Series

All Portfolios
*  Cash is valued at its nominal amount;

* Liquid assets such as money market instruments are
valued at amorised cost basis;

* Azcats which include, in particular, interest and dividends
receivable, receivable for investments sold and receivable
for Fund units subscribed are valued at nominal value;

*  Liabilities which include, in particular, payable for invesimenis
purchased payable for Fund units redeemed interest and
dividands payable are valued at neminal value.

(b} Realized gains and losses on Investments

Net realised gains and losses on sales of investments have
been determined on the basis of the average cost methed.

(&) IncomeyExpense from Investrments

The Fund takes credit for income from its investments on the
following basis:

inberest income is accrued daily and includes the
amortisation on a straight-line basis of premiums and
accretion of discounts;

*  bank interest is recognized on an accrual basis;

+  dividend income is accrued on the ex-dividend date and
is shown net of withholdng tax;

*  an interast rate differential {(1RD%) is the difference in interast
rates bebween two simiar interest bearng securities which
artsas from the currency hedging process e.g. ifthe 1 month
interest rate on USD is 0.25% and on AUD it is 1%, then
the implied IRD is 0.75%. Traders in the foreign exchange
market use |IRD's when pricing forward exchange rates.
IRD's can be positve, nil of negative. Inclusion of IRD's
in dividends may constitute a payment fom capital in some
jurisdictions. IRD is recorded as miscellansous fees i the
Staternent of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.

(d} Financial Derivative Instruments

Dwring the year, the Fund has entered into a number of
forward foreign exchange transactions and fifwres contracts,
Open futwres contracts are valued at the fair market value to
close the contracts on the accounting date, Surpluses/deficits
arising from these and closed unsettied contracts are taken

to net unrealised appreciationf{depreciation) and are included
under aszets or liabiliies (as appropriate) in the Statement

of Met Assets. The net change in unrealised appreciation or
depreciation and the net realized gains or losses on setfemeant
or closing transactions of forward foreign exchange transactions
and fitures contracts are presented in the Statement of
Operations and Changes in Met Assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

During the yvear, the Fund has entered into swap agreements
o exchange the return generated by one instrument for the
return generated by another imvestment, The Fund can write
credit default swaps ("CD3" and purchase CDS. When the
Fund writes andfor purchases a CDS, a senes of premiums is
paid to or paid by the Fund, in retum for a payment contingent
on a credt event (predefined in the agreement). The premiums
are included in the cost of CDS. VWhere possible, swaps are
marked to market bazed upon daily prices obiained from third
party pricing agents and verified against the actual market
maker. Where such quotations are not available swaps are
priced based upon daily quotations from the market maker. In
both cases changes in guotations are recorded as net change
m unrealised appreciation or depreciation in the Staterment of
Operations and Changes in Net Assets. Met realisad gains or
losses on matunity or termimation of the swaps and the interest
eamned in relation to the swaps are presented in the Staternent
of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.

Each Portfolic may sell call oplions and purchase put options
on stock indices to seek to hedge portfolio securities against
the impact of anticipated general price declines in equity
markels or specific industry sectors thereof, Oplions on indices
are similar to options on securiies except that on exercise

of assignment, the parties to the contract pay or receive an
amount of cash equal to the difierence between the closing
value of the index and the exercise price of the option times
a specified multiple, The effectiveness of a hedge employing
stack index options will depand primarily on the degree of
caorrelation between movements in the value of the index
underfying the option and in the portion of the portfolio being
hedged. Among cther factors, the degree of correlation with
respect to convertible securities will be affected by the degres
e which the market value of portfolio securities is attributable
b their cenversion value, The net change in unrealised
appreciation or depreciation and the net realised gains or
losses on expiration or closing ransactions of options are
presented in the Statement of Operations and Changes in
Met Azsets.

{e)} Foreign Exchange

The cost of investments in currencies other than the

currency of denomination of the respectve Portfolio has

been translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the time

of purchass. Market value of investments and other assets

n currencies other than the currency of denomination of the
respectve Portfolio have been translated at the exchange rate
prevailing at the Portfolios valuation point in Luxembourg as at
31 January 2019, The net change in unrealised appreciation or
depreciation and the net realised gains or losses on disposal
or setilerment of other assels or liabilities in cumrencies other
than the currency of denomination of the respective Portfolio
are presented in the Statement of Operations and Changes

in Met Aszets,

Income and expenses in currencies other than the curmency of
denomination of the respective Portfolio have been translated
at the rates of exchange prevailing on transaction date.

Different exchange rates are resulting from the pricing matrix
and different valuation points between the different BGIS
Pertfolios, In the below table, the prior day close exchange
rates are presented for Global Allocation Portfolio, Global
Equity Income Portfolio and World Income Portiolio, and the
4PM CET exchange rates for Income Strategies Portfolio and
Super Money Markat Fund, The fellowing exchange rates
were used to transkate the investments and other assets and
other liabdities for all Portfolios dencminated in currencies
other than the base cumency of the respective Portficlio as at
31 January 2015

ALD 0.727650 |

CAD 0760312

CHF 1 005379

DK 0153160

EUR 1 147500

GEF 1310 1. 207000

HED 0 127447 0127454

= 0274774 0272078

INE 0014081 0014054

Y 0008203 C00a125

W 0000889 0 O00E O

WM Q052500 QO52252

SEK 0110887 0110085
_S60 0745168 0.7353054

TWD 0032550 0032522

LAR 0075283 0073648

{f Combined Financial Staternents

The Combined Financial Statements of the Fund are
expressed in USD and include the total of the financial
statements of the different Portfolios.

(g} Deferred Organisatonal Expenses

Dafarred of gantsabional expenses are capitalised and are
amorised on a straight-line basis over & five year period,
As at 31 January 2019 all Portfolios had fully amortised
their deferred organizational expenses.

{h} Income Equalisation

Each Portfolio follows the accounting practice of egualization
to prevent the undistributed income per unit from fluctuating
solely by reason of subscriptions and redemptions of its
units. This is accomplished by maintaining an equalisation
account for the relevant Portfolio, The equalisation account

is credited with that portion of the proceeds of subscribed
units representing the net undistributed income per wnit of
those units, and is debited with that portion of any redemption
payment representing net undistributed income per unit of
the redesmed units. A portion of the dividends declared by

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [35)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

a Portfolio may consist of amounts previously credited to

the equalisation acceunt, The yield reponted to investors will
include amounts paid from net income as well as any amount
paid from the egualisation account.

The lncome Equalisation is included in the Movements
in umit capital in the Statement of Operations and Changes
in Met Assets.

() Unfunded loans represent the remaining oblgation
of the Fund to the bomrower,

Az at 31 January 2018, the Income Strategies Portfolio had
an unfunded lean of ISD 128 628 disclosed under "Payable
for unfunded loan” in the Statement of Met Assets.

3. Management Company and Investment Advisers
{a} Management Company

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A IS the
Management Company ofthe Fund. Pursuant to the
Management Regulations, the Management Company has
agreed to manage the Fund's Portfolios for the exclusive
account of the relevant Unitholders. The Depositary and
such other agents as appropriate, induding Distributors of
the Fund's Units in and oulside Japan are appointed by
the Management Company. The Management Company
has delegated the appointment of Distributers to the
Principal Distributor.

BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.4 is a wholly
owned subsidiary within the BlackRock Group and is
regulated by the Commission de Surveiiance du Secteur
Financier ("CS5F).

{b} AIFM

The Management Company has appeinted BlackRock Asset
Management Ireland Limited as the AIFM to provide and
procure the provizion of investment management services,
including portfolio and risk management functions, for the
Fund within the meaning of the AIFMD. The AIFM iz entited
to delegate its funclions, powers, discrebons, duties and
obligations, subject to AIFMD requirements.

The AIFM is a wholly owned subsidiary within the BlackRock
Group and is authonsed by the Central Bank of Ireland.

The AIFM is paid cut of the management fee due to the
Management Comparny, as outlined in MNote 4.

{c} Investment Advisers
Subgect to the overall responsibility of the AIFM, each of the

Pomtfalios receives investment advisory senvices from the
Imvestment Advisers:

[40] BlackRock Global Investment Series

w 1 Im. -u -. 'E T

Global Alocation Portialio , BlackRock Japan Co |, Lid
Glgbal E-.|II‘.y’ Incoms Porialio | BlackRock Immrasiment

| Man B Wi (L) Lefmitad
BlackRock Financsl
Managamant, Ine.

Income Sirategess Podtiolo

_El_rp:-r Money Markal Fund | ElackRock Financis
Martagomeard, InG

| BlackRock Japan Co , Lid

Wedld Incoma Palohs

The Investment Advisess form part of the BlackRock Group.

The Investment Advisers are each paid cut of the managament
fee due to the Management Company, as outlined in Mote 4.

4. Management and Distribution Fees
{a} Management fees

During the year, the Fund paid management fees to the
Management Compary.

The lewel of management fee varies from 0.45% to 0.75% per
annum of the MAY, with the exception of Class F units, which
do not pay a management fee bud rather a fee to the Invesimenl
Advizer or affiliates under a separate agreement. The level of
management fee vares according to which Paortfolio and unit
class the investor buys. These fees accrue dadly, are based

on the NAY of the relevant Portfolio and are paid monthly.

The Fund's AIFM and Investment Adviser fees are bome by the
Management Company and paid through the management fee.

(k) Distribution fees

The Management Company has also entered info a Distribution
Agreement with BlackRock Investrment Managemsent {LIK)
Limited {the “Principal Distributor’). The Principal Distributer
may conclude contraciual arrangements with cerain Distrbulors
for the distnbutien of units cutside the U_S. such as the
Japanese Distributors (as disclosed on pages 3 to 4).

The level of distribution fiee varies from 0,25% to 1.00% per
annum, of the MNAY, with the exception of Classes AD units,

D wnits, F units, Institubonal | units, which do not pay a
distribution fee. The level of distribution fee varies according

to which Portfiolio and unit clazs the investor buys. These fees
accrue daily, are based on the MAY of the relevant Portfolio and

are paid quartiery.

The management and distibution fees per unit class for
each Portfolio are disclesed in detail in the Fund's Prospectus.

A fee waiver on management fees, distribution fees was in

place on Super Money Market Fund's Commeon, Current and
Institutional | units.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

5. Coordination Fees

The Management Company has entered info an agreement
with Black Rock Operations (Luxembourg) 5.4 rl, "BROL")
pursuant to which BROL, under the direction of the Board

of Directors of the Management Company, provides certain
corporate and administrative coordination services on behalf
of the Fund.

The Coorcnation foe rate i 0.025% of the sverage daily
W&y of the Fund (excluding Class F units), per annum.

A fee waiver on coordination fees was in place on Super
Maney Market Fund’s Common, Current and Institutional | units,

6. Administration Fees

The Management Company has appainted State Streat
Bank Luxembourg S.C.A, 49, avenue JF Kennedy,
L-1855 Luxembourg, as the Fund's Administrative Agent
in Luxembourg to assist the Management Company at its
principal office in Luxembourg with general administrative
tasks pursuant to the Administration Agreement, against
charging usual fees for these services.

7. Audit Fees
Detailed bedow are the fees paid lo Dalotte Audt Sarl for
the year ended 31 January 2019,

31 January 219
Audt and sudil related services [excluding VAT) G 000

MHOn-auid senices -

8. Depositary Fees
The Management Company has entered into the Depositary
Agreament with the Depositary, State Street Bank

Luxembourg S5.C_A. This agreement was amended effectve 17
January 2019 in ne with the appointment of the AIFM.

The Depositary Agreement provides that all securities and
cash of the Fund, other than cash held in tradng accounts

or held in any operating accounts for expenses or dividend
disbursement accounts {which may be maintained at other
banks), are to be held by or to the order of the Depositary
provided that the Management Company may place cash in
ovemnight call accounts or on term deposit with other banks
approved by the Depositary, who shall continue to supervise
such funds. The Depositary is responsible for the collection
of pnncipal and income on, and the payment for and colleclion
of proceeds of securities bought and sold for the Fund. In line
with the compliance of the AIFM and the Fund's compliance
with AIFMD, the Depositary's role pursuant to AIFMD
enhances Unitholder protection and includes the responsibility
o safekoap the assets of the Fund and hold in custady all
financial instruments, cash and other assets of the Fund (the
“Safekeeping Function”).

The Depositary charges the Fund fees for these services in
accordance with its usual rates expressed as a fraction of

a percentage per annum of the net assets of the Fund. The
Depositary may appoint one or more comespondent banks, and
it is expected that the Depositary retains a correspondent bank

in the United States, whose fees shall be borne by the Fund.
Az part of its Safekeeping function, the Depositary is liable to
the Fund for the loss of inancial instrumems which are held
in custody. This enhanced role of the Depositary leads to an
increase in depositary fees by up to 0.0062%, payable by
the Fund,

8. Transactions with Connected Parties

The ultimate holding company of the Management
Company, the Principal Distributor, the AIFM, the Investment
Manager and the Investrnent Advisers is BlackRock, Inc.,

a company incorporated in Deleware, USA. PNC Financial
Services Group Inc. is a substantial shareholder in BlackRock,
Inc. When arranging transactions in securties for the Fund,
companies in the PNC Group may have provided securities
brokerage, foreign exchange, banking and other services,

or may have acted as prnncipal, on their usual terms and
may have benefted therefrom. Commissions have been paid
to brokers and agents in accordance with the relevant market
practice and the benefit of any bulk or other commission
discounts or cash commissions rebates provided by brokers
or agents have been passed on to the Fund. The services
of PNC Group companies could have been used by the
Investment Advisers where it was considered appropriate

to do 50 provided that their commissions and other berms of
business are generally comparable with those available from
unassociated brakers and agents in the markeds concemad,
and this is consistent with the above palicy of cbtaining best
net results.

During the year there have been no significant tranzactions
wihich were outside the ardinary course of business or which
were not on normal commercial terms.

10, Taxation

Under present Luxembourg lenw and practice, the Fund is

not liable to any Luxembourg ordinary income or capital

gains tax, nor are dividends paid by the Fund subject to any
Luxembourg withholdng tax. However, the Fund is subject to
a subscription tax (“taxe dabonnement™) of 0.05% per annum
levied on the M2V of the Fund at the last day of each calendar
quarter, in accordance with the 2010 Law, except in respect

of Super Money Market Fund as well as in respect of the
Portfolios or unit classes reserved for institutional investors
within the meaning of Article 174 of the 2010 Law, on which

a reduced tax of 0.01% per annum is levied, For the year
ended 31 January 2019, the Global Allocation Portfolio and
Werld Inceme Portfolio have not paid Luxembourg taxes, as no
subscription tax is paid on the assets held by the Fund in other
undertakings for collective investment already subject to that
tax in Luxembourg,

Under applicable foreign tax laws, withholding taxes may be
imposed en interest, dividends and capital geing at vanous rates.

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund — The net income {i.e., accrued
interest income net of accrued expenses) is declaredas a
dividend on each valuation date on all units outstanding on
that day to the Unitholders of record immediately pnor to the

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [41]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

daily determination of MAW per unit, provided always that units
shall be entiled to a dvidend only from the day on which their
subscription is settled prior to 12 noon Luxembourg time and
that units redeemed shall not be entitled to receive the daily
dividend declared on the settiement day of their redemption.

The net income of the relevant other Potfolios consists of

(I} interest accrued, discount eamed (including both original
issue and market discount) or cther income earned, (5) less
the estimaled expenses of the Portfolio (including managemen
feas). In respect of each dividend declared, the Board of
Directors of the Management Company may determine

if, and to what extent, such dividend is to be paid out of
vndistmbuted net investment income, realised and unrealised
capital gains, respectively increased or dacreased by net
equalisation credits or debits.

12. Credit Facility

A= at 31 Januwary 2019, Income Strategies Portfolio was
enlilled to a credd facility of USD 85,000,000 from Siale Sireel
Bank and Trust Company. As at 31 January 2015, a loan of
USD 0 was drawn down (2018: LLSD 26,000,000). A loan
commitment fee is charged on a daily basis in relation to this
credit Facilty which is included in the Statement of Operations
and Changes in Met Assets. The loan commitment fae consists
of 0.15% charged on the unused pertion of the credit facility
and the FED or LIBOR rate (depending on which is higher)
+0.20% margin spread on the used portion of the credd facility.

13. Security Pledged or Given in Collateral
Az at 31 January 2019, no securties have been given
or received as guarantes.

14. Financial Derivative Instruments and EMclent
Portfollo Management Techniques

Each of the Portfolios may use demvatives to hedge
market and currency risk, and for the purposes of efficient
portfolio management.

The use of dervalives may expose the Porfolios 1o a higher
degres of risk. In pamticular, denivative confracts can be
highly volatile, and the amount ofinitial margin is generally
small relative to the size of the contract so that ransactions
are geared, A relatively small market movement may have
a potentialty larger impact on derivatives than on standard
bonds or equities.

See further details in the specific Portfolio of Investments.

15. Transaction costs

In crder to achieve its investment cbjective, a Portfiolio will incur
transactions costs in relation to trading activity on its Portfolio
of imvestrments. Disclosed in the table below are separately
idantifiable transaction costs incurred by each Portfolio for the
vear ended 31 January 2019. These include commission costs,
settiement fees, broker fees and depositary faes.

[42] BlackRock Global Investment Series

Glotal Alocation Partlalio ushD -
Glogbal Equety Income Portiolio LsD 20117
Income Strateges Porioio K50 3,219
“Super Money Markst Fund 1 uso | — -
Wenld Income Portiols Tuso | F
16, Amounts due fromfto Brokers

The Portfolios trade derivatives with a range of counterparties,
The counterparties to forward foreign exchange transactions
and swap contracts are shown in the Portfolio of Investments,

Cash collateral is paid or received on swaps lo cover any
exposure by the counterpanty to the Fund or by the Fund to
the counterparty. Due fomto Brokers on the Staternent of MNet
Aszets consists of cash collateral and margin paidireceed
from the Fund's clearing brokers and vanous counterparties.

17. Subsequent events

Effective 28 Febmary 2018, Graham Bamping was
appointed as Chairman of the Board of the Directors of the
Management Compary.

18. Legal proceedings
In May 2015, the Motors Liquidaton Company Avoidance
Action Trust, as the Trust Administrator and Trustee of the
General Motors bankruptcy estate, began serving complaints
on former holders of certain General Motors debt (the *Debt"),
in the United States Bankmuptcy Court for the Southern District
of Mew York. The former holders of the Debt, which are
defendants in the proceading, include the BlackRock Global
Investment Seres = Income Strategees Portfolio ("1SP7). In
addition to ISP, the lawsuit also names over five hundred other
institutional investors as defendants, including a numbser of
BlackRock finds, The defendants recetved full repayment

of the Debt on the understanding that it was fully secured

at the time of repayment. The plaintifs contend that ISP and
other defendants were not secured creditors at the time of

the 2009 payments and therefore not entitied to the payments
in full. The plaintiffs are seeking an order that |SP and cther
defendants retum proceeds received in 2008 in full payment
of the principal and interest on the Debt, ISP cannot predict the
outcome of the lawsuit, or the effect. if any, on I5P's net asset
value. As such, no Babidlity for litigation related to this matter is
reflected in the inancial statements.
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Unit Classes (Unaudited)

Unit Classes In Issue
Az at 31 January 2019, the Fund offers the following undl classes.

A Class destnbuding wrst m ALID

A Class destnbating urit in EUR

A Class destnbuting unit i LISD

A Class deinbating unil SG0 hedgad
A Class non-destnbuling wnit in ALUIC
A Clss ron-distnbubing wral m JPY
A Clags non=distibuling wnil in LISD

AD Chass aisiributeng unid in USD

B Class disnbuting undt in LSD

C Class distnbuting unt in USD

Common disbutng wnit in USD

Cumant detnbuting und in USD

F Ciags destributing un in USD

Irshibutional | desinbuging unit in LIED

o Clats deetnbuting und in USD
1 wvaiably in wbubonsd mesdlors

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [45]
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2(a)
2(a)
2(2a)

2(a)

2(a)

2(a)
4,5,6,7,8

37 42
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345,672,999 37,802,799
74,507,659 8,148,158
420,180,658 45,950,957
2,070,923 226,476
2,801,402 306,361
557,645 60,984
425,610,628 46,544,778
1,371,919 150,033
1,405,578 153,714
2,068,116 226,169
1,212,846 132,637
6,058,459 662,553
419,552,169 45,882,225
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2018 31

2018 31 2017 31 2016 31

( ) ¢ D ( ) ¢ ) ( ) ¢ )
419,552,169 45,882,225 356,660,236 39,004,363 360,936,945 39,472,064

( ) () ( ) ) ( ) )
15.70 1,717 13.60 1,487 12.38 1,354
( ) () ( ) ) ( ) ()
( ) 18.05 1,363 15.59 1,177 14.04 1,060
() ) ()
( ) 113.49 100.18
37 42
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2018 31

356,660,236 39,004, 363
2(c) 5,421 593
279,654 30,583

285,075 31,176

2,726,361 298,155

2,726,361 298,155

17,852 1,952

90,879 9,939

6,729 736

5,568,182 608,936

(5,283,107) (577,761)

2(a),2(b) 21,249,688 2,323,866
2(a),2(b) (2,149,292) (235,047)
2(d),2(e) (792,156) (86,630)

18,308,240 2,002,189
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46,146,755 5,046,609
365,533 39,975

2(d),2(e) 490 54
46,512,778 5,086,637

59,537,911 6,511,066

139,657,177 15,272,909

(136,303, 155) (14,906,113)

3,354,022 366,796

419,552,169 45,882,225
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2018 31
21,267,716 5,090,755 7,462,208 18,896,263
5,160,945 2,589,151 1,725,999 6,024,097
6,975,411 32,726,744 6,369,687 33,332,468

37 42
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2018 31

fonds commun de
2010 12 17 2010
2011
EU 2011/61
2013 12
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2018 31

14,831,039 3.85
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2018 31

2018 31

0.811260

1.241151

1.411700

0.762835
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2018 31

0.810300

0.814133

1.073710

0.167431

1.246050

1.417599

0.127871

0.293470

0.015722

0.009184

0.000936

0.053701

0.127532

0.764497

0.034311

0.084361

(f

10 13 BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined

(9

2018 31

(h
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@G
2018 31 98,742

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier

0.45 0.75

0.25 1.00
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0.025

1855
49 49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2018 31

2018 31

63,500

113/284



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10
2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01 2018 31
11
12
()
(i)
12
2018 31
65,000,000 2018 28
2018 31 26,000,000 2017 25,000,000

0.15 FED LIBOR 0.90
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15

16

17

2018

31

2018 31
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500

2009

2009
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2018 31
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Statement of Net Assets
as at 31 January 2018

Cash crwed [0 baol Tl B2 1371919 -
QS g boan {F3 000,000 - -
Payabie for unfunssd loar, o T - -
imtil and diviciends payabie F] e - =
Payiba o insasimants purhoses F ) FEL LT 1.40% 578 3 807
Pyl kef Fund Lnka mdssmad Heal 134, b7 Hivkl 118 e
Diivide s pryabis Ha 1424 823 - -
Mt urreaised Seicalion on 3

Opens borward fareigh axchange Wansaciors E] = - -
ATV B B ol Laki i A56,18 2007 M 1212548 WAL
Tetal Habiities Rz B.038,459 | 4508
Tolsl nat saseis LM05508T9 FLIRL-R] 1. 500,000

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Management Company

NZLEYS

Direcior

oele 25 MAY 2018

T reotion o pige 17 i 87 kormy e rvmgrad powm of e Prancal ieseeeis.
[10] BisckRock Global Investmant Sarias
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Statement of Net Assets

as at 31 January 2018 continued

Saturites portfolo oo 436, 074 TE1 1.418,075,013 35T, 756
Unreaised apprecabonTdepmoaoon) (18,507 486) - 100,375
Securites portfolio al mirkcet value Haj) 417317285 1418 675,013 35805031
Cash of bank Hay - 15,674 Taan
Intenest and deidends recenvable Ha) 4,183 86T E1,585 103, 16T
Recenable Mo drd srerts sokd Hah 11,689,050 - -
Recerable for Fund units subsenbed Ha) 1,066 01 - =
Secaps 3t markel vakss Hd)y 76,783 - =
Purchased opbons at market vaiue Hdy N4 - -
Orhisr aisets 312,508 59,1 12,584
Tatsl assats 434,669,125 1ANBTELETE 5995302
Liabllities
Cash owesd 10 bank it} 7.563,743 - -
Curstanidang ioan 12 26,000,000 - =
Pary bl fof unfunded loan 20 68,742 - -
Interest oo dradends porpable Haj 7 - -
Pargable for nvestments purchase d Hay 10234001 250,500 -
Paryabl for Fund units redes med Hap 1.7EE 20 - -
Drendends payable Tay - 1,350,802 s
et unrealistd depreciation on

Open forward forsgn exchange Iransachong Hdy 320,553 - -
Acerued Expenses and other kabddies 45878 TEE AT BET 407 160 24
Total liabilities AT ITI280 3.918.588 TS
Totsl Aet 194t 386,887 ETE 13868832717 5761108

Thih i o ping 37 B A7 Sairm o il it 1 Wi

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [11]
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2018

Global Allecation Portfolle
Total et 255 ets usD 416,582, 969
Mt rsaat value par
& Chyss rudrietntn Butng url usD 15.70 1380 1238
A Class non-gdrtnbudng uet ALD ALD 18,08 1550 124
i Chvts ronetiiibutng uat JFY JFY 11348 100.18 =
Gilobal Equity Income Portfalia
Total net assets ush 131,823 008 141 4T3 5T B8 BE 108
heet meset value per
A TRy (stnbutneg und uso 1543 1300 12,18
F Chyss chsinburbng und =) 1748 1458 1342
Income Strategles Pertfollo
Total ret 253 ats uso 385 BAT BT6 413,537 540 A9,T03 358
Mat asiet vake par
i Chais drsinbubng und s 512 584 LR
& Class dsrbuting ung SG0 hedged S0 10.69 10,80 0.6
i Clyss distributing urit [ 1] are 863 arm
B Clase dmrbuting uso 573 565 50
€ Chass distrbuling unit -2 1034 1018 an
JClass GG ung s 82 am 241
Super Money Market Fund
Tortal Fist 255 ats uso 1396 832,717 1,337 j5E4 002 12T 52
hist Erssat vl par
Cormmon deginbutng Uil LUED 1.00 100 100
Current d@nbiting urd usD 100 100 1.00
Ensshun o | chsinbiineg undd D 1.00 1,00 1.0
World Income Portfello
Total net ass ets usD H.TE1,50b A5 504 528 81287 505
et arssat value per
A Class distnboting ung uth 11.18 LiE: ] 10 &8
& Chyis getrbutersg und ALD AU 1105 1088 1085
A Clags distnbuting und BUR (=123 il o CE

Thia itid o plagi 37 % A2 Sairm oy el il et S Wi Uil il Bt
[12] BlackRock Global Investment Seres
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2018

Mat 3490t 3 the Beginning of the year 2.284,839880 356,660,236 H1ATIETD
Income
Bank wrepnes He) TRE, T3 54l 1358
Bond and loan mtemes Heh 34 3654 B0 - -
Drviatiends. (et of weihaking ta) 2 5530412 = 4179847
Inderest rate o ferential He) 31,568 - =
X e 174854 770 A54 =
Tatal incoma AT B34 2168 50T 4181303
Expennes
Managemant fees 4 12180 2 2,706,381 e 084
Dustrite fiin, dups 4 7411 153 2,7 361 284084
Adminesiraton fees ] 455,354 - 36,335
At fees 7 4588 = T
Legal fens 145 i) 17,852 1438
Printing and other reporting fees 68,135 - =
Sty Sl o T 1 32887 - e
Coordinafion fees & 852 508 ai.ae 12,254
Cusiody feeg B 7 BR5 - &TT7
Transer agent tees 139,755 BT 513
Lian eonmrmtrment fees 12 471 62 = -
M elansous fpes 30408 - 28
Tatsl sxpentes bafore reim bursemen 22230243 G568, 182 T20.906
Rrenbursement of expenses 4 3,137 450 - -
Total supenses after relmbursement 10,082 ey .50 2 T8
Met investment incomat|deficit) 26,841 453 B.263,W07) J A0 398
Fealisad o of |Fnedrmens Ak ) 57.682,112 21,249,688 14 807 746
Realised {loss) on Invesiments Hapin) (35,580 807) 2.148.292) [ E 3
Mt rwales el gaind{loss) on
Futizms Contracts ) (5885} * =
Forssgn cumencies and forsand fonsgn echangs transachons Hd), e (5200711} (Taz,158) (1,558 415)
Ol CORTacE: ) (5084} & -
Sevap trarsachans Hdy (3074 - -
Mat realised gainifions) for the year 26,808 755 18,308 240 1410318
Change iy ufmdabisd AppRecalsn of |nvemmenis 50,585,227 4E,148 755 9,703,761
Change in unnealised (depreoation] on irvesments HBTT 405 ¥E553) 2888431
Net change in unnealised appreciation{deprecation] on
Foresgn curmenties and forsand Tonsgn enchangs tramtactons Hd) e 53,964 A6 4047
Swap ransactons ) 5592 < =
Diptione. Contracts: Hdy {828 - -
Mat change in Hued apprecistisni{depreci stion) for the year 70,330 265 48512 TTH 12 B 534
Irrea sl (Decrease) in net assets as a result of eperations 126,068,778 aTan o7 S
Mlavemarte in unin capital
et recepts 25 a result of issue of units 1887227 T4 1HBETAT? 42 240 503
Nt prymends 35 2 resul of repurchase of units. (LT7.738 20) {138, 203.155) [75.8230,851)
Ires rea sl [Cecreana) in vt axsets a5 2 result of movessents in share capital {20,508,181) 3354 022 3 0 o)
Deeutierics daclaned n {38,643 B 15) = (3834 823)
Mt nasets of the end of the year 2,360,556 279 419,652, 469 13 523 009

T i dons pngir 37 B A2 Sairm o el il e 51 Bt Uil Bl
Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [13]
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2018 continued

Het assets at the beginning of the year 413,537 A3 1337 654 0er2 45 504 520
Imcanie
Bonk ntdsrest Hey 4T T.IZA10 =
Bondl and oan mbem st He) 24,136,111 10.2mamn -
Drenderads (net of vathinaidng tae ey 1541 - 1,356 524
Infeness rane Siferant Hel - - 31,586
e income - = =
Total income 24,138,258 17840589 1228 430
Expansss
Managenent fee s i 2434, 248 6514234 191887
Crsaritugnn fpes 4 1031 538 PR 280,550
AdmanEsiraton fees & 182, T8T 173,440 63,783
udiiees T 15853 a1 1058
Legal fess §T.300 Rl 106
Printing and cther reporng fees 97056 151 406 19673
Suscnphon b 1] 21285 123 505 =
Coordanaton fees 5 1 S27 38 350 3588
Cuestody fees -] 10 408 45512 38,587
Traerelies agent fees ‘war 127 817 |0
Loan commitment fees ] A3 o2 = =
Misc elanous fees LLELS L *:
Total sxp beefont refim bursement G674 BT 558 ERR4T
Raimbursement of epenzes 4 - 3137450 -
Totsl expandat sfter relmbuarmement SAT4E2 6500108 E2a04T
Mat Imvestment incomed{deficit) 10,453 508 114400881 TEEALY
Realiged gan on Imastments Hapxh) 21 304 0 15315 304384
el i (logs] on |rvestmens T (21,653,158) [2.4:58) [126883)
et realsad gand(loss) o
Futuee s Contracts Hdy {5 805 - -
Foregn cumenoos ang forsand fongsgn echangs iransactons dpie) (18R - (BT B )
Cipfons: contrads Hdy [5,0B4) - -
Swap transachores Hdy [3074) = =
Mat raalided gainloai) for the yaar {2.268 264 BAET (A0 285
Change in unrealised appreciabon on Investments qﬂ_m = ﬁl‘ﬁ1_
Changs i unnealiond (SepracaBon) o meamants V2,584 /528 - 23410
Mt changs m unieshzed afpns sbonf deprecation) on
Foresgn cumenoes and forvard fohegn exchangs targackons Hdpde) - Ry - -
Sevdp rANSALbO S ) 5.582) - -
Oyptions: contracts ) [az8) - -
et ¢hangs in unreslined bpprecistisndeprei v en) for tha year 8,481 1550 - 2E4154
I reat D Fedion ) i ot AR 0EE A6 B redult T sperations DA6TT 4 11447738 2 540 247
Mevements in unit capital
Mt recepis &5 ¥ el of issue of ungs 57.56¢ 056 1457 G551 TE3, 241
et piyrrenis X8 5 el of epurchase of unls (85,183 524} (1407 84T EBT) [12.4T0602)
I reas f{Diacreat-a) in et et 38 a reduht of movements bn share capital {27 B2T 65 40163714 (1HLTET 381
Eradends declaned 1 (3.504,133) (11,447 737) (856 807)
Met assets at the end of the year 366,687 ATE 120817 T 76 10E

Thib mlid ions g 37 80 42 Sairm i el il et S0 Bl i ancaed i adivriirit
[14] EBlackRock Global Investment Seres
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Statement of Changes in Units Outstanding

for the year ended 31 January 2018

Global Allocation Portfalic

A Class nondrstnbuting ueit 1,267,118 5.080,755 7.462,208 16,895,283
A Class non-disrbuting Lt ALD 5 160 585 1569151 1.7355999 BOZa 08T
& Clats non-distributing et JPY BATS A1 F2 736,744 E.380 BAT T3 537 4658
Global Equity Income Portfalla

A Class dstritating ung A 384 529 1.004,102 1,963,573 3355450
F Clags distrituting unt § 858 000 1,776,145 3061 B 4570524
Income Strategles Portfollo

A Clags distributing unt BIVEBAT 755,329 2066, 087 B.A85. 080
A Class dswributng und SG0 hedged VIRETT - 03 6 54
A0 Clasgs di strbuting unid s 567,855 &.407 B34.300
B Class deitnbiting urd O06.487 4,000 213,110 BAPATT
C Olavgs distrbeitng unt 116560 17,875 81680 16T
o Class dsnbutng und .756.21 Baga. T 12,247,180 G083
Super Money Market Fund

Comman desirbutieg Ui 352055 2880 - 55 P4
Cumrent degnbuting urft W27 B45457 833 230 540,152 BB a7 £07
Inesiabysanneyl | dmrituting, urs 503340 511,557 500 S0 .555 470258460
World income Portfelle

AClags distributing und 1,385,338 55280 TN 1 BiEGAEH
AClass distnlntng ot ALD T3 EN2 10,545 4.8, 040 1608128
A Class distibutng und EUR 290,061 138 662 457

Tha ik G plagrd 37 % 42 bairn o il il gt S Bl Inaniail @ alivnandd
Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [18]
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. Organisation
BlackRock Global Investment Series (the “Fund”) is a fonds
commun de placement formed under the laws of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg. The Fund is set up under Part Il of the
law of 17 December 2010 relating to undertakings for collective
investment as amended (the “2010 Law”). The Fund qualifies
as an altemnative investrment fund ("AIF7) in accordance with
DCirective 2011/81/EU of the Evropean Parliarnent and of

the Council of 8 June 2011 on Alternative Investrment Fund
Managers ("AIFMD7) and the Luxembourg faw of 12 July 2013
on altemative investment fund managers as amended (the
2013 Law’).

The Management Company is not the alternative investment
fund managar (AIFM”) of the Fund and has appointed
BlackRock Asset Management Schweiz AG (the “Investment
Manager’} to perform portfolio and risk management functions
for the Fund within the meaning of the AIFMD. Currently, the
Imvestment Manager iz not an authorised AIFM.

Az at 31 January 2018, the Fund offered units in five portfolios,
Global Allocation Portfolio, Global Equity Income Portfolio,
Income Sirategies Portfolio, Super Money Market Fund and
Warld Income Pertfobo (each a “Portfolio” and collectivaly the
“Portfolios™). Each Portfclio has dfferent investment ohjectives
and imvesls in different types of iransferable securities or markels.

Each Portficlio is a separate pool of assets and is represented
by separate units of sach Portfolio which are divided inta unit
classes as detailed in Appendx |.

The classes of units have equivalent rights in the Portfolios
but carry different features and charging structures, which are
rmore fulty deseribed in the Fund's Prospecius.

Significant events during the year
A new prospectus to the Fund was issued on B December 2017.

2. Bummary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial staternents have been prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in Luxembourg
and with the legal and regulstory requirernents refating to the
preparation of the financial statements as prescribed by the
Luxembourg authorities for Luxembeourg imvestment companies
and include the following significant acceunling policies:

(@) Valuation of Investrments and Other Azsels

The Fund's investments and other assels are valued
as follows:

Mon-Money Market Portfolios

v Term loans are not Ested on any securifies exchange. In
determining the Met Azzet Value ("NAVT), the Fund ublises
the valuations of term loans furnished by a pricing service
approved by the Board of Directors of the Management
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Company. The pricing service typically values term loans
at the bid price when gquotations are readily available,
Term loans for which quotations are not readily available
arg valued at fair market value on a consistent basis as
deterrmined by the pricing service using pricing matrices
to determane valuations. The procedures of the pricing
services and its evaluations are reviewed by the Investrment
Adviser of the relevant Portfolio (the ®Imvestment Adviser”)
under the general supervision of the Board of Directors of
the Management Company. The Board of Directors of the
Management Company has deterrmined in good faith that
the wse of B pricing service is a fair method of determining
the valuation of term loans:

Portholio secunties consisting of equities, bonds and othar
debt instruments (other than short-term obligations but
including ksted issues) may be valued on the basis of
prices furnished by one or mare pricing services which
deterrmine prices for normal, institutional-size trading units
of such secunties using market information, transactions
for comparable securities and vanious relationships
between secunbes that are generally recognised by
institutonal traders;

Portiolio secunties that are listed on stock exchanges or
traded on other regulated markets are valued at the last
known price on such exchanges or markeds as of the close
of the business day immedately preceding the valuation
date with the exception of Global Equity Incorma Partiolia
for which securities are valued at the valuation date the
last known price as of 4,00 p.m. Lisembourg ime (in
each case, the “Relevant Time"). If there are no such
sales of a paticular security. the value of such security
will be the tast available bid price of the Redevant Time
or, in certain aroumstances, such portfolio secunbies are
valued at the last sale price on the exchange that is the
primary market for such securiies, or the last quoted bid
price fof those securities for which the Over-the-Counter
{("OTC") market such as NASDAQ. is the primary market
for listed securities;

Investments in cpen-ended collective investment schemes
are valued on the basiz of the last available net asset value
of the units of such collective investment scheme;

Ficed income securities that are not listed on stock
exchanges of raded on other regulated mearkels are
valued at the last available bid price or yield equivalents
cbtained from one or more dealers or pricing services.
Securiies fraded in the OTC market are valued at the last
avaitable bed price. In cases where secunties are traded on
mare than one exchange, the securiies ane valued on the
exchange designated by or under the direction of the Board
of Directors of the Management Company as the primary
market. Fortfolio securities that are traded both in the OTC
market and on a stock exchange are valued according to
the broadest and mest representative market;

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [37]
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

¢ Securities and assets for which market quotations are not
roadily available are valued &t falr value as determined in
good fith by or under the direction of the Board
of Directors of the Management Company.

As at 31 January 2018, such fair valuation adjustment was
applied as per table below:

Super Money Market Fund

¢ The Management Company has established procedures
designed to slabdise, to the extent reasonably possible, the
Super Money Market Fund's price per unit as computed for
the purpose of sales and redemptions at one USD;

¢ The Portfolic’s underlying securities and maney market
instruments are valued based upon their amortised
cost, This involves valuing an instrument at its cost and
thereafter assuming a constant amartisation to maturity
of any discount or premium, regardless of the mpact
of luctuating mterast rates on the market value of the
instruments, While this method provides certalnty in
valuation, it may result in pericds during which value, as
determined by amortised cost, is higher or lower than the
price the Super Money Market Fund would receive if it sold
the instrument;

* Holdngs are periodically reviewed by or under the direction
of the Board of Directors of the Management Company
to determine whether a deviation exists between the NAY
calculated using market values and that calculated on an
amartized cost basis In the event it is determined that a
deviation exists, which may result in material déubion or
other unfair results 1o investors o existing Unitholders, the
Management Company takes such cormective action by o
under the direction of its Board of Directors as is regarded
as necessary and appropniate, including the sale of the
portfolio instruments prior to maturity to realise capital
gains or losses of to shorten average portfolio matunty,
withhaldng dividends, or establishing a MY per Linit by
using available market values.

All Portfclios
v Cash is valued at its nominal amount;

*  Liguid assets such as money market instruments are
valued at amortised cost basis;

b Assels which Include, in particular, intens sl and dividends

receivable, receivable for imvestrents sold and receivable
for Fund units subscnbed are valued at nominal value,

[38] BlackRock Global Investment Series

¢ Liabilties which include, in particular, payable for
investments purchased payable fr Fund units redesmed
interest and dividends payable are valued at nominal value.

{b) Realised gains and losses on sales of Investments

Realized gains and lozzes on sales of mvestments have been
determined cn the basis of the average cost method.

{c} Incomal/Expense from Investments

The Fund takes credit for income from its ivestments on the
following basis:

v interest income is accrued daily and includes the
ameortication on a straight-line basiz of premiums and
accration of discounts;

¢ bank interest is recogniszed on an accrual basis;

¢ dividend income is accrued on the ex-dividend date and
% shown net of withholding tax;

¥ An interest rate differential (IRD") is the difference
in interest rates between two similar inferest bearning
securities which anses from the currency hedging process
e.g. Hihe 1 month interest rate on USD is 0.25% and on
ALID it is 1%, then the implied IRD s 0.75%. Traders in the
foresgn exchange market use IRD's when pricing forward
exchange rates. IRD's can be positive, nil or negative.
Inclusion of IRD's in dvidends may constitte a payrent
from capital in some jurisdictions. IRD is recorded as
income or expense in the Statement of Oyperations
and Changes in Met Assets.

{d) Financial Dervative Instruments

During the year, the Fund has entered into a numbser af
forward foreign exchange transactions and futures conbracts.
Open forwand foreign exchange transactbons and futures
contracts are valued at the fair market value 1o cdose the
contracts on the accounting date. Surplusesideficits arising
from these and closed unseffed contracts are taken to net
unrealized appreciationf{depreciation) and are included
under assets of liabilties (as approgriate) in the Statermant
of Net Assets.

The net change in unrealised appreciation or depreciation

and the net realised gains or losses on setfement or closing
transactions of forward foreign exchange transactions and
futures contracts are presented in the Statement of Operations
and Changes in het Assets.

During the year, the Fund has entered into swap agresments
to exchange the return generated by one instrument for the
roturn generated by anather investment, The Fund can write
credit default swaps ("CDS") and purchaze CDS. Vihen the
Fund writes andfor purchases a CDS, a series of premiums
is paid to or received by the Fund in retum for a payment
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

contingent on a credit event (predefined in the agreement).
The premiums afe ineluded in the cost of CDS. Whede
possible, swaps are marked to market based upon daily prices
cbtained from third party pricing agents and verified against the
actual market maker. Where such quotations are not available
swaps are priced based upon daily quotations from the market
maker. In both cases ehanges in quotations are recorded

as net change in unrealised appreciation or deprecmtion in

the Staternent of Operations and Changes In Met Assats,

Met realised gains or losses on maturity or teemination of the
swaps and the interest eamed in relation to the swaps are
presented in the Statement of Operations and Changes

in Met Assets,

Each Portfolio may sell call aptions and purchase put options
on stock indices to seek to hedge portfolio securities against
the impact of anticipated general price declines in equity
markets or specific industry sectors thereof. Options on indces
are similar to options on securities except that on exercise

of assignment. the parties to the contract pay of recehae an
ameunt of cash equal to the difference between the closing
value of the index and the exercise price of the option times

a specified multiple. The effectiveness of a hedge emplaying
stock index options will depend primarily on the degree of
comelation between movements in the value of the index
undartying the cption and in the portion of the portfolio being
hedged. Among cther factors, the degree of correlation with
respect to convertible securities will be affected by the degree
to which the market valee of portfolio secunties s altributable
to their conversion value. The net change in unrealised
appreciation or depreciation and the nel realised gains or losses
on expiration of closing transactions of options are presented
in the Statement of Operations and Changes in Met Assets,

(@) Foreign Exchange

The cost of investments in currencies other than the

currency of denomination of the respective Portfolio has

been translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the tinne

of purchase, Market value of investments and other assets

in currencies other than the curency of denomination of the
respective Portfolio have been translated at the exchange rate
prevailing at the Portfolios valuation point in Luxembourg as at
31 January 2018. The net changs in unrealised appreciation o
depreciation and the net realised gains or losses on disposal
or setlement of other assets or iabilities in currencies cther
than the currency of denormination of the respective Portifolio
are presented in the Statement of Operations and Changes

in Met Assets,

Income and expenses in currencies other than the curancy
of denomination of the respective Portfolio have been translated
at the rates of exchange prevailing on transaction date.

The following exchange rates were used to translate the
imvestroents and other assets and ather kabilities for the
Income Strategies Portfolio and Super Money Market Fund
denominated in currencies cther than the base currency

of the respective Portfolio as at 31 January 2018.

duc (Gﬁ.

811260
EUR 1241151
GEF 1411700
S0 0762835

The following exchange rates were used to translate the
investrnents and other assets and cther Eabilities for the Global
Allocation Portfolio, Global Equity Income Portfolio and World
Income Portfolio dencminated in currencies other (han 1he
base currency of the respective Porfolio as at 31 January 2018.

0810300

DEI4133
1 075710

“ORK 0AETAR
EUR 1 24R050
GEP 1417500
HKD oA2TET
LS (1. 243470
1R 0015722
FY 0009 184

"KW 000936
M 0053701

= 0127532
56D 0. TE44GT
™D B.038311
78R 0084351

{fy Combined Financial Staterents

The Combined Financial Staternents of the Fund are expressed
in S0 and include the total of the financial statements of the
different Portfolios,

{g) Deferred Organisational Expenses

Deferred organisational expenses are capdtaksed and are
amortised on a straight-line baszis over a fve year period.

Ag at 3 January 2018, all Portfiolios had fully amortized their
deferred crganizational expenszes,

{hj Inceme Equalisation

Each Portfolio follows the accounting practice of equalisation
to prevent the undistibuted income per unit from fuctuating
solely by reason of subscriptions and redermptions of its
wnits, This is accomplished by maintaining an egualization
account for the relevant Portficlio. The equalisation account

is credited with that pertion of the proceeds of subseribed
units representing the net undistributed income per unit of
these units, and is debsted with that portion of any redemption
payment represanting net undistributed income per unit of
the redesmed units, A portion of the dividends declared by

a Portfclio may consist of amounts previously cedted to

the equalisation account. The yield reported to investors will
inciude amounts paid from net income as well as any amount
paid from the equalisation account.

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [39]
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

The Income Egualisation is incduded in the Movements
in unit capital in the Statement of Operations and Changes
in Met Assats.

(i} Unfunded loans represent the remaining obligation
ofthe Fund to the bomower.

Az at 31 January 2018, the Income Strategies Pordfolio had
an unfunded loan of IS0 98 742 diszlosed under “Payable
for unfunded loan” in the Statement of Net Assets.

(i} Transaction costs

Tranzaction costs are incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquastion, isswe or disposal of secunties.
An incremental cost is one that would not heve been incurred
ifthe entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the
security. When a security is recognised initially, it is measured
at its market value, plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the security.

Transaction costs excheding cutodan transacton fees on
purchases or sales of securities are included within net
realiszed gainiloss) or net change in unrealised appreciation/
{depreciation) within the Statement of Operations and Changes
in Met Assets of each Fund. Custodan transaction fees are
included in Custody fees in the Staternent of Operations

and Changes in Net Assats of the Fund. Refer to Mote 8

for further information,

3. Management Company
BlackRock Fund Management Company 5 A is the
Management Company of the Fund.

Pursuant to the Management Regulations, the Managameant
Company has agreed o manage the Funds Portiolios for the
exclusive account of the relevant Unitholders. The Custodian
and such other agents as appropriate, includng Distributors
of the Fund's Units in and cutside Japan are appointed by
the Management Company, The Management Company

has delegated the appointment of Distributors

to the Prancipal Cestribator.

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A is a wholly owned
subsiciary within the BlackRock Group. It is regulated by the
Commission de Sunveilance du Sedeur Financier ("C55F).

4. Management and Distribution Fees
During the year, the Fund paid management fees to the
Management Cormpany,

The level of management fee varies from 0.45% to 0L75%
of the NAW with the exceplion of Class F units. which do not
pay a management fee but rather a fee to the Investrent
Advizer or affiliates under a separate agreement. The level
of managemuent fes vanes according to which Portfolio and
unit class the investor buys. These fees accrue daily, are

[40] BlackRock Global Investment Series

based on the NAY of the relevant Portfolio and are paid
manthly. The Management Company pays certain costs and
fees out of the management fee, including the fees of the
Investment Advisers.

The Management Company has also entered into &
Digtribution Agreament with BlackReck westment
Management (LK) Limited (the principal “Distributor”).

The Prineipal Distributer may conelude contractual
arangements with certain Distributors for the distribution
of Units outside the U.5. such as the Japanese Distributors
{a=z disclosed on pages 3 to 4).

The level of distribution fee varies from 0.25% to 1.00%, of the
&Y, with the exception of Classes AD units, D units, F units,
Institutional | units, which do not pay a distribution fee. The
level of distribution fee vanes according to which portfolio and
unit elass the investor buys. These fees accnse daily, are based
on the NAY of the relevant Portfolio and are paid monthly.

The management and distribution fees per unit class for each
Portfolio are disclosed in detail in the Prospectus.

A fea waiver on management faes. distnbution fees and
Coordination fees was in place on Super Money Market Fund's
Commeon, Current and Institutional | Units.

5. Coordination Fees

The Management Company has entersd into an agresment
with BlackRock Operaticns {Luxembourg) S.a rl. ("BROL"
pursuant to which BROL, under the direction of the Board

of Directors of the Management Company, provides certain
corporate and administrative coordination senvices on behalf
of the Fund,

The Coordination fee rate is 0.025% of the average daily
MNAY of the Fund (excuding Class F Units), per annum.

6. Administration Fees

The Management Company has appointed State Street

Bank Luxembowrg 5.CA., 48, avenue J-F Kennedy,

L=1855 Luxembouwrg, as the Fund's Administrative Agent

in Luxembowrg to assist the Management Company at its
principal office in Luxembourg with general administrative tasks
pursuant to the Administration Agreement, against charging
usual fees for these senvices.

7. Audit Fees
Detailed below are the fees paid to Delote Awdit 5.4 ),
for the year ended 31 January 2018,

EUR
A and audt related services

(e chadng VAT ) £3,500
Mon-audl services =
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

£. Custody Fees
The Managemsn Company has enersd into the Custodian
Agreement with the Custodian, State Street Bank
Luxembourg 5.C.A.

The Custodian Agreement provides that all secunties and cash
of the Fund, other than eash held in trading accounts or held in
any cperating accounts for expenses or dvidend disbursement
accounts (which rmay be mantained at other banks), are to

be held by or to the order of the Custodian provided that

thie Management Company may place cash in overnight call
accounts or on term deposzit with other banks approved by the
Custodian, who shall continue to supervise such funds. The
Custodian is responsible for the collection of principal and
inceme on, and the payment for and collection of procesds

of zecurities bought and sold for the Fund.

The Custodian charges the Fund fees for these services in
accordance with its usual rates expressed as a faction of

a percentage per annum of the net assets of the Fund. The
Custodian may appoint cne of more cofrespondant banks, and
it is axpected that the Custedian retains a comespandent bank
in the United States, whosze fees shall be bome by the Fund.

9. Transactions with Connected Persons

The ultimate holding company of the Management Company,
the Principal Distributor, the investment Manager and

the Investment Advizers is BlackRock, Inc. a company
incerporated in Dedaware, USA, PNC Financial Services Group
Inc. iz & substantial shareholder in BlackRock, Inc. When
arrangng transactions in secunties for the Fund, companies
in the PMC Group may have provided securities brokerage,
foreign exchange, banking and other services, or may

have acted as principal, on their usual terms and mey have
benefited therefrom. Commissions have been paid to brokers
and agents in accordance with the relevant market practice
and the benefit of any bulk or cther commission discounts

or cash commissions rebates provided by brokers or agents
have been passed on to the Fund. The services of PNC Group
companies could have been used by the Investment Advisers
where it was considered appropriate to do so provided that
their commissions and other terms of business are generally
comparable with thoze available from unassociated brokers
and agents in the markets concemed, and this is consistent
with the above peficy of cbiaining best net results,

During the year there have been no significant transactions
which were cutside the ordnary course of business or which
were not on normmal commercial terms.

10, Taxatlon

Unger present Luxembourg law and practice, the Fund is

not able to any Luxembourg ordinary income or capstal

gaing tax, nor ang dividends paid by the Fund subject to any
Luxermbourg withholding tax. Howewver, the Fund is subject to
a subscription tax (taxe d'abonnement’) of 0.05% per annum
levied on the MAV of the Fund at the last day of each calendar
quarter, in accordance with the 2010 Law, except in respect
of Super Money Market Fund as well as in respect of the
Portfolios or unit classes reserved for institubional investors

within the meaning of Article 174 of the 2090 Law, on which

& reduced tax of 0.01% par annur i levied, For the year
ended 31 January 2018, the Global Allocation Porifolio and
Werld Income Portfolio have not paid Luxembourg taxes, as no
subscriphion Bx iz paid on the assets held by the Fund in other
undertakings for collective investment already subject to that
tax in Luxembourg.

Under applicable foreign tax laws, withholding taves may
be imposed on interest, dvidends and cap#al gains at
various rates.

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund — The net income (e, acerued
interest meome net of accrued expenses) is declared a5 a
dividend cn each valuation date on all Units sutstanding on
that day te the Unitholders of record immediately prior to the
daily determination of NAV per Linit, provided ahways that Units
shall be entitled to a dividend only from the day on which their
subscription is settled prior to 12 noon Luxembeurg time and
that Units redeemsad shall not be entitled to receive the daily
dividend declared on the settlernent day of their redemption,

The net mcome of the relevant other portfolios consists of

{i} interest acerued, discount eamed {including both original
issue and market discount) or other income eamed, (i) less
the estimated expenses of the Portfolio (including management
fees). In respect of each dividend declared, the Board of
Directors of the Management Cormpary may determing if, and
to what extent, zuch dividend is to be paid out of undistributed
net imvestment income, realised and unrealised capital gains,
respectively increased or decreased by net egualisation credits
ar dabis.

12, Credit Facility

Az at 3 January 2018, Income Strategies Portfolio was
entifed to a credit facility of S0 65,000,000 from State Street
Bank and Trust Company, ending on 28 March 2018, As at

31 January 2018, a loan of USD 26,000,000 was drawn down
(2017 USD 25,000,000, & loan commitment fee is charged
on a daily basis in relation to this credit facility which is included
in the Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.
The loan commitment fee consists of 0.15% charged on the
unused portion of the credit facility and the FED or LIBOR rate
{depending on which is higher) + 0.80% margin spread on the
used portion of the credit facility.

13, Security Pledged or Given in Collateral
Ag at 31 January 2018, no securibes have baen given
or received as guarantee,

14, Investment Advisers

Subject to the overall responsibility of the lnvestment
Manager, each of the Portfolios receives imnestment advisory
services from the Investment Advisers: BlackRock Imvestment
Management (UK) Limited (BIM UK), Black Reck Japan Ca.,
Ltd. (BLEJPM) and BlackRock Financial Management, Inc.
{BFM Inc.) as describad in the Prospectus.

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [41]
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The Investment Advizers are each paid cut of the management
fee paid to the Management Comparny a5 cutined in nate 4,

The Investment Advisers form part of the BlackRock Group.

al Allacalion Porfloha BLK.
Global Equiy income Forthobo BN LK
~inctena Sirabigies Pertlcha EFM Inc.
Super Money Market Fund EF

Welarld Income Porticlio BiL K. JPH

15. Financial Derivative Instruments and Efficient Portfolio
Management Techniques

Each of the Portfolos may use deratives to hedge

market and curmency sk, and for the purposes of efScient
portfolie management.

The use of derivatives may expose the Portfolios to a higher
degree of risk_ In particular, derivative contracts can be highly
volatile, and the amount of initial margin is generally small
relative to the size of the contract so that transactions are
geared, A relatively small market movernent may have a
patentially larger impact on dervatives than on standard
bonds o equities,

Sea futher detalls in the specific Portfalio of Investments,

16, Cash collateral

The Portfolios trade derivatives with a range of counterparties.
The counterparties to forward foreign exchange transactions
are shown in the Portfolio of Investments.

Cazh collateral iz padd or received on swaps bo ecver any
exposure by the counterparty to the Fund or by the Fund
to the counterparty. Due fromfo Brokers on the Staterment
of Met Assets consists of cash collateral paidireceived from
the Fund's clearing brokers and various counterpartes.

Az at 31 January 2018, there was no cash collateral and
margin paidirecenved from the Fund's clearing brokers and
vanous counterparties.

17, Transaction costs

In order to achieve its investment cbjective, a Portfolio will incur
transactions costs in relation to trading activity on its Portfolio
of imrestments, Disclosed in the table below are separately
identifiable transacton costs incurred by each Portfdlio for the
yaar ended 31 January 2018, These include commission casts,
zetlemnent fees, broker fees and custodian fees.

Ghabal Adlacation Podlolio | usD -
Ghobal Equty Income Potioboe s 58,408
Income Strabeges Porthoho ] U5 #24
Super Money Marke] Fund | ust -
Welarld bname Portioho | UsD -

[42] BlackRock Global Investment Seres

Mot all transaction costs are separately identifiable. For fixed
incarms inestmants, ferward foreign exchange ransactions
and other derivative contracts, transaction costs are included
in the purchase and sales price of the investment. Whilst net
separately identifiable these transaction costs will be captured
within the performance of each Portfolio.

18, Subsequent events
There have been no significant subsequent events since
the year end.

19. Legal proceedings

in May 2015, the Motors Liguidation Company Avoldance
Action Trust, as the Trust Administrator and Trustee of the
General Motors bankruptey estate, began serving complaints
on former holders of certain General Motars debt (the “Debt™),
in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District
af Mew York. The formner holders of the Delbt, which are
defendants in the proceeding, include the BlackRock Global
Investment Series - Income Strategies Portiolio (“15P%). In
addition to ISP, the lawsuit also names over five hundred other
institutional ivestors as defendants. including a number of
BlackRock fmnds. The defendants received full repayment of
the Debt on the understanding that it was fully secured

at the time of repayment. The plaintiffs contend that ISP and
other defendants were not secured creditors at the time of
the 2004 payments and therefore not entitied to the payments
in full. The plaintiffs are seeking an order that ISP and other
defendants return proceeds received in 2009 in full paymment
of the pancipal and interest on the Debt. ISP cannot predict the
outcome of the lawsuit, or the effect. if any, on ISP's net asset
value. As such, no liability for litigation related to thiz matter

is reflected in the financial statements.
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Appendix | — Unit Classes (Unaudited)
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A Class disinbuting unt in AUD

& Clads distnibuting urit in EUR

A Class digtibuting urst in USD

A Class distnbuting unit 3G0 hedped
A Class non-dstibuting unil m ALD
A Class nen-distnbuting unit in JPY
A Class norrastnbuting unil i LISD

AD Class dstributing unil in USD

B Clags distributing ung in USD

C Class disinbutng und in USD

Common distnbubng unit m LSD

Cument distribubing unit in USD

F Class distibuting unit in 3D

Irsbibutsonal | dstniading it in UED

o Class distnbuting urit in USD
* wvadabie to mibkdonal ivesiors
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2019
332,376,260.77 36,348,667,878
2,729,131.92 298,457,867
329,647,128.85 36,050,210,011
15,289,024
6,143,988
37,009,136
14.65 1,602
16.67 1,259
102.17
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2019
Graham D. Bamping 0
. 0
Geoffrey D. Radcliffe
. _ 0
Francine Keiser
0
Leon J. Schwab
. 0
Joanne Fitzgerald
Adrian M. Lawrence 0
1990
0
Deloitte Audit S.a r.l.

Deloitte Audit S.a r.1l.

2019

2,536,376,089.43
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38 59

2019 31

109.36

23 103
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2018 12 31

2018 2017
814 89,019 801 87,597
2,637 288,382 1,948 213,033
10 3,411 373,027 3,820 417,755
6,048 661,409 5,768 630,788
6,862 750,428 6,569 718,386
11 500 54,680 500 54,680
532 58,180 529 57,851
4,607 503,822 4,050 442,908
5,639 616,681 5,079 555,439
13 1,223 133,747 1,490 162,946
6,862 750,428 6,569 718,386

2019

13 33
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2018 12 31
.
2018 2017
14,114 1,543,507 13,284 1,452,738
(13,285)  (1.,452,848) (12,135)  (1,327,084)
829 90,659 1,149 125,655
(142) (15,529) (145) (15,857)
687 75,130 1,004 109,797
13 1,422 7 766
15 1,640 3 328
28 3,062 10 1,094
715 78,192 1,014 110,891
(155) (16,951) (213) (23,294)
560 61,242 801 87,597
*IFRS 15 17

13 33
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2018 12 31
2018 500 529 4,050 5,079
— — 560 560
— — 560 560
_ 3 3) _
2018 12 31 500 532 4,607 5,639
2017 500 450 3,328 4,278
— — 801 801
— — 801 801
— 79 79 —
2017 12 31 500 529 4,050 5,079
2018 54,680 57,851 442,908 555,439
— — 61,242 61,242
— — 61,242 61,242
— 328 (328) —
2018 12 31 54,680 58,180 503,822 616,681
2017 54,680 49,212 363,950 467,842
— — 87,597 87,597
— — 87,597 87,597
— 8,639 (8,639) _
2017 12 31 54,680 57,851 442,908 555,439

13 33
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2018 12 31
2018 2017

560 61,242 801 87,597

(13) (1,422) @ (766)

155 16,951 213 23,294

16 1,750 1 109

718 78,520 1,008 110,235

(689) (75,349) (691) (75,568)

13 (267) (29,199) (131) (14,326)

(238) (26,028) 186 20,341

(155) (16,951) (213) (23,294)

(393) (42,978) €20 (2,953)

(393) (42,978) 7) (2,953)

3,820 417,755 3,848 420,817

(16) (1,750) @ (109)

12 31 3,411 373,027 3,820 417,755

33
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2018 12 31

1855 35 35A,
Avenue JF Kennedy, Luxembourg L-1855, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

2019 23

) IFRS
IFRS

12
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2018 IFRS
IFRS IFRS 15
IFRS
IFRS 2014 IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 1AS 39
IFRS
2018
IFRS
IFRS IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS
IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS IFRS
IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 15
IFRS 15

IFRS 15 IAS 18
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IFRS 15
1AS
17
IFRS IFRS
IFRS 2015 2017 2019
IFRIC 22 2019
IFRS 2015 2017
IFRS
IFRIC 22

IFRIC 22
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IFRS
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IFRS

IFRS
IFRS

IFRS
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2018 2017

IFRS 15
2018 2017

5,038 4,033

520 789

2,586 2,978

5,970 5,484

14,114 13,284

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
2,301 1,702

IFRS 15 121
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2018 2017
16 1
2018 2017
237 220
(82) Q)
155 213
26.01 2017
27.08 2017
2018 2017
715 1,014
186 275
( ) _ )
51 57
¢ ) 7)
(82) ™
155 213
IFRS 12
IFRS 10

814 (2017 801 )
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2018 12 31 14,105 (2017 13,269
") 2018 12 31 2,301 (2017
1,702 )
2018 12 31 22 (2017 23 )
*2017 17
2018 2017
814 801
2018 2017
801 794
13 7
12 31 814 801

12 31 814 801
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50

2018 2017
336 242
2,301 1,702
— 4
2,637 1,948
2018 2017
3,411 3,820
2018 2017
40 500 40 500
10
2018 2017
2017 124
125 2017 45
482 2017 479
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2018 2017

38 37
1,185 1,453
1,223 1,490

2018 2017 2018 2017
1 1 1 1

2018 2017 2018 2017
3,411 3,820 3,411 3,820
2,637 1,948 2,637 1,948
6,048 5,768 6,048 5,768
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2018 2017 2018 2017
1,223 1,490 1,223 1,490
1 — 1
1 — 1
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3,411 — 3,411
2,637 — 2,637
6,048 — 6,048
2017
3,820 — 3,820
1,948 — 1,948

5,768 — 5,768
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/
6,048 — — 6,048 —
/
5,768 — — 5,768 —
/
20 20

41
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2018

336

2017

242

2018

14,278
99

14,377
1,185

2017

— 8,820
— 102
— 8,922
172 1,281
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IFRS 15 1AS
i

1,149 12,135 13,284
— (12,135) (12,135)

1,149 — 1,149
(145) — (145)

1,004 — 1,004

IFRS 15

www . blackrock.com
55 52
invrel@blackrock.com.

158/284



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Statement of Financial Pozition as at 31 December 2008

s m7
Sole 5 Do 5000
Ansets
Nom-current assels
Onlber nom-curment linancial assels B B4 01
Carreni msseis
Trage s odleer recvivahles q 2637 (RFE
Cashy el cash equin alems 0 14l 3820
I, (K% 5.768
Total ezt : 0,662 0,568
Eapmity mrud Habilities
Fapuity
Called up share capitnl 1 S0 500
{hher reserves a1 519
Retained earmngs 4.607 4050
Tutal cquity SEW 5074
Current limbilities
Trade s uther payabls 13 .23 1490
6,062 G, 50

Tedal equity and labilities

Apprened by the Board oo 3 Moy 2009 and sipned on its belall by

Mz Leon Sclwah
Directer

The motes on pages 13 1o 33 foom an intzeral port of these Dmancial staenems,
Page 10
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

Restated®

L) B 27

MNote 5 000 5 0y

Revenue 4 14,114 13,284

Cost of zales (13,285 (12135)
Giross profit 829 1,149
Administrative expenses (142) (145)
Operatmg profit 5 687 1,004
Finance incorme 13 7
Wet gams losses on derivative financial instrsments 15 3
Net finance moome 28 10
Profit before bax 715 1014

Income tax expense [ (155) (213)
Profit for the vear 560 201

The above results were derived wholly from continuing operations.

The comparry hias no other comprehensive meome for the vear other than the resuliz above, Total comprehensive
income is equal to profit for the vear.

* See note 2 and note 17 for details regarding the restatement of comparatives following the implementation of
IFRS 15

The notes on pages 13 1o 33 fonm an inbegral part of these financial statements.

Page &
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At 1 January 2018
Profit for the vear

Total comprehiensive income
Transfer to other reserves

At 31 Decemnber 2018

At 1 Janmary 2017
Profit for the vear

Todal comprehensive income
Transfer to other reserves

At 3] Decernber 2017

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

Retalned
Share capital  Olher reserves carnings
50 000 5000
S04 529 4080
Sai
- 560
3 (3
S04 532 4,607
Called up share Retalned
caplial  Other reserves earnings
£ 00 ] £ 004
S04 450 3313
- /01
- 201
72 k]
S 529 4,050 "

The notes on pages 13 1o 33 oo an integral pant of these fnancial statements,

161/284
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BlackRock Fund Managemeni Company 5.A.

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

Cash fMows from operating activities

Profit for the vear

Adjustivients Lo cash flows froen non-cash tems
Finance incoms

Income L expense

Foreign currency losses

Working capital adjustments
Increase in trade and other receivables
Diecrease in trade and other payables

Cazh movernents from opersiions

Income taxes paid

et cash flow from operating activitics

Net decrease in cash and cash equavalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Jamary

Effect of exchange rate Muctustions on cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The notes on pages 13 to 33 fonm an integral part of these financial statements,

Page 12
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Note 5 M) & iy
60 #01
(13 {7y
L3 155 213
| & 1
TI® 1.8
o (B8 (691
13 (26T (131)
(X38) 186
& (135 {213)
(393) 27y
(393) (27)
3820 3848
(1é) (1)
3411 3820
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

1 General informeaiion

The compary is a private company limited by share capital incorporated and domiciled in Luxemboung.

The address of itz registered office is:

35A, Avenue JF Kennedy

Lucembourg

L-1855

Grand Duchy of Luembourg

The principal activity of the compary is the provision of investment management, administration and
distritution services of Lizcembourg collective imvestment undertakings and the issue of certified or statement of
undivided co-proprictorship interests in these funds.

BlackRock Glotsal Investment Series cumrently offers investors the opportumity to invest in five separale
portfalios:

= Sugrer Money Markel Fund:

= Grlobal Equity Income Portfolio;
* Income Strategics Porfolio;

* Waorld Inceme Porttolio;, and

* Gilobal Allecation Portfolio.

These fimancial statements were authorised for issue by the board on 23 April 2019,

2 Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statemenis are set out below.
These policies ave been consigtently app lied 1o all the vears presented. unless otherwize stated.

Basis ol preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost accounting basss, except for financial
instruments measured at fair value (s explyined in the accounting policies below), and in accordance with
Intemnational Financial Reportmg Standards ("TFRS") and IFRS Interpretations Committee interpretations as
adogted by the European Uricn,

The financial stateiments are presented in US dollar,

Page 13
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

Godng concern
The company's business activities, togetber with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance
aind pozition are et oul in e Directors' Report on pages 1 to 5 along with key rigks Gacing the compary,

In assessing the compamy's going concem status, the directors have taken into account various factors, including
the financial position of the comparry s in particular the significant net cash position. The company has, at the
date of thiz report, sufficient existing finances available for itz estimated requiraments for the et twelve
riveniths, This, together with its proven ability to generate cash from eperations, provides the directors with the
confidence that the campary 15 well placed to manage its business risks successfully.

After making appropniate enquiries, the direclors have a ressonable expectation that the company has adequate
resources 1o continue in operational existence for the forcsecable future, Accordingly, they continue to adopt the
going concemn basis in prepaning the Directors’ Report and financial statements.

Changes in accounting policy

Adoption of new and revised standards

Om 1 Janwary 2018, the company adopted all the new and revised [FRSs that were effective from that date and
were relevant o s operations. The company's accoumting policies have been updated accordingly for the
adoption of LERS @ Financial festruments and FFRS 15 Revernes from Contracts with Crstomers.

TFRS ® Finanelal Instrionents

In the cwrent vear, the compary haz applied [FES 9 (a2 revised in July 20145 and the related consequential
amendments to other IFRSs, IFRS @ introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets, for general hedge accomting and for impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 supersedes the
gulance containgd in fatermationed Accorrsting Stadand (“TASY 39 Fliamclal Istriments: Recogition and
Aecrrrorement. The company has applied [FRS 9 in accondance with itz transitional provisions and has elected
ot Lo restate comparatives on imtial application.

Based on an anabysis of the company's financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 Jawary 2018 and on the
facts and circwmetances that existed at that date, the directors have assessed the impact of IFRS 9 on the
comparry's financial statements as follows:

Classification and meanirement

Fingeiol acvets

IFES 9 eliminates the previous [AS 39 assel cslegonies of held-to-amsturty, loeons amd receivables and
available-for-sale. Under IFRS 9, all recopnised finmncial assets are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value (with changes in fair value reflected in the meome statement or other comprehensive
InCoemne).

Page 14
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

Under IFRS 2 the classification of financial asset debt instruments depends on both the company's business
maddel for managing the debt instruments and its contractual cash flow characteristics, The business model
assesamment looks at whether a business will manage its financial assels to generate cash flows from cellectng
the contractual cash flows, selling the financial asset or both, The contractual cash flow test considers whether
or nod the cash flows an entity receives on the instrument are made up selely of payments of principal and
interest ("SPE1)

There were no financial assets which the compamny has previously designated as fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") under [AS 39 thai were subject to reclassifications, or which the company has elected to reclassify
upon adoption of IFRS @

“The adoption of IFRS @ has had no impact on the measurement of the company's financial assets.

Fireziciad liabilities

Under IFES 9, financial liabilities are measured at amorised cost or far value through the income statement
The adoption of [FES % has had no impact on the classification and meaamrement of the company's financial
liabilities.

Invpeirnne

The new mnpairment requirements are based on an expected credit loss ("ECL") model and replace the incurred
lesz model under 1AS 39 The ECL mexlel anticipates inpairment losses by recognising them before they are
realised. The impact of the new mnpaimment requirernents under [FRS 9 has not had 2 omaterial anpact on the
financial statements.

Hedge accounting:
As the company does not apply hedoe accounting, the application of the [FRS 2 hedge accounting requirements
does not have a material impact on the company's financial statements,

TFRS 15 Revenute from contracts with cusfomers

IFES 1% has been adopted in these financial statements, It establishes a smgle comprehensive model for entifies
to e in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers, IFRS 15 supersedes the previous
revenue recegnition guidance including fAS F8 Revernse and the related interpretations.

The primary impact of IFRS 15 on the compary”s financial statements has been to the presentation of revenue,
which i= now disclosed gross of certain retrocessions and administration servicing fees paid to grougy companics.
The compary bas applied the changes retrospectively, with the prior period restated in accordance with 145 8
Acconmting Policies, Changes in Accowting Extimates and Ervors, applying the permitted practical expedients
where relevani. Note | 7 sunenarises the ispact on the prior period as a result of these changes.

Standards not yvet effective

Al the date of authorisation of these financial staternents, the following new/revised [FRSs and amendrments (o
IFES have not vet been applied, as they were not effective for the periods reported:

*  Amendments to JERST Armudl Improvemends fo IFRS Stmxdards 200 5-2007 Cwele (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after | January 20019),

« JFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Trossactions and Adveace Consideration (effective for ammial periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Anral Improvements fo JTFRSy 20052007 Cyele

The directors do not anticipate that the spplication of the amendments in the fiture will have a significant
impact on the company's financial statements as the compamy is neither a first-time adopter of IFRS nor &
ventre capital organisation.

Page 15
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

IFRIC 22 Forelgn Ciorrency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRIC 22 addresses how to determine the ‘date of transaction’ for the purpose of deermining the exchange rate
to use on imitial recognition of an assel. expense or income, when consideration Tor that stem has been paid or
received in advance in a foreign currency which resulted in the recognition of a non-monelary assetl or
nen-monedary liability (e.g. a non-refundable deposii or deferred revenue). The directors do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the fiture will have a significant impact on the compamy's fimancial
statements as the company already accounts for transactions involving the payment or receipt of advance
consideration in a foreign cumency in a way that is consistent with the amendments,

Revenue recognition

Fevenue is recognised wpon transfer of control of promised services to customers, i.c when (or ash a
performance obligation is satisfied, in an amount that reflectz conzideration to which the comparny expects (o be
entitled in exchange for these services (the "transaction price™), net of VAT, The compary enters into contracts
that cam include multiple services and, in certadn mstamces, mav charge a “unitary fee” Lo cover these services,
Such fees are accounted for separately if they are determuned to be distmcl. Consideration for the company's
services 15 generally in the form of variable consideration because the mmount of fees is subject to market
comditions that are outside of the company’s nfluence. The company includes vartable consideration as part of
itz tranzaction price when it iz highly probable that a significant reversal will nol occur, e, when the associated
uriceriainty 1% reselved. For some contracts with customers, the company involves third parties and related
parties in providing services o the customer. Generally, the companry 15 deemed to be the principal in these
arrangements because the company controls the promised services before they are transferred to customers, and
accordingly presents the revenue gross of related costs

Trvestment Advisory aned Administration Fees

Investent advisory and administration fees are recognised as the services are pafommed over time. Such fees
are primarily based on agreed-upon percentages of net asset value, AUM of committed capital. These fees are
affected by changes in AUM, including market appreciation or depreciation, foreign exchange translation and
el mflows or outflows. Investment advisory and adrumstration fees for mvestment hmds are shown net of fees
watved pursuant Lo contractual expense lmitations of the funds or veluntary wavers. Fecs are generally
invorced monthly inarrears.

Distribestion Fees

The company accounts for fund distnbution services and sharcholder sorvicing as distmet services, scparate
from investment advisory services, because customers can benefit from each of the services on their own and
becase the services are separately identifiable (that iz, the natwre of the promised services i to transfer each
service individually). The company records sales commizzions as distribution fee revere for serving as the
principal underwriter and/or distributor for certain mutual funds that it mamages. Distribution fees are generally
based on net asset values and are recognised when the services are perfonmed and the amount is known
Consequently, a portion of the distnibution fees the company recognised may be related to the services
performed m prior pericds that met the recognition criteria in the current period. The company recognises
engoing sharcholder servicing fee revenue when and as shareholder services are performed over time. The
comgany contracts with third parties for varieus fimd distribution services and shareholder servicing of certain
fundz to be performed on itz behalf, These arrangements are generally priced az a portion of the fee paid to the
company by the fund or as an agreed-upon percentage of net aset value. The compasy presents its distribution
fees and distribution and servicing cests incurred on @ gross basis as it is deemed to be the principal m such
trarsactions.

Page 16
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

Forelgn eurrency transactions and balances
The fmancial statements are presented in US dollar, which i the currency of the primary economic envirsument
ifs whiich the company operstes (its fimctional cumrency),

Transactions in currencies other than the company’s functional currency (foreign currencics) are recognised at
the rates of exclmnge prevailing on the dates of the transactions, At ¢ach balance sheet date, menctary assets and
lisbil#ties that are dencininated in foreign cuvencies are retranslated at the pates prevailing at that date
Non-monetary ilemms carried at fair vabue that are denominated in foreign curmencies are transkated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair valie was determined. Non-motetary items thal are measured in temns of
historical cost in a foreign cumency are nol retranslated. Exchange diferences are recognised in the incomse
statement in the period in which they anse.

Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently pavable,

The curent income tax charge 1s calculsted on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the coumiries where the company operates and generates taxable
ncome,

Finamcial Instruments
Financial assetz and financial labilities are recognized on the company's statement of financial pesition when
the company becomes a party 1o the contmctual provisions of e matiurment.

Becognition crd neasurenent

All regular way purchases or sales of fmancial assets or liabilitics are recogmised and derecogmized on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are those that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or comvention of market place.

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value, Transaction costs that ane directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial ligbilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair valee of the financial aseets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attrbutable to the acquisition of
financial assets or fimancial liabilities 2t FVTPL are recognised immediately in the income statement.

Finaneial assets

Classification

The compary classifies and subsequently measures its financial assefs into one of the categories discussed
below depending on the natere and purpose of the financial assets acquired This is determined at the time of
iritial recogiition

Fmaricial assetz that meet the following ¢onditions are subsequently measuned at amortised cost:

+  the financial asset 15 held within a business model whose objective 15 1o hold finscial assets in order to
collect contraciual cash flows; and

= the comtracieal terme of the fmancial asset give rise on specified dates to cagh fows that are SPPT on the
principal amount cutstandmg

Fmancial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other

comgrehensive income ("FVTOCT"):

+  the financial asset is held within a business model whose ebjective is achieved by both collecting contraciual
cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

+ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are SPPL on the
principal amount cutstading

By default, all ather financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Despite the above, the comgany may make the following rrevocable election/designation at imtial recognition

of a financial asset:

* the company may imevocably clect to present subsequent changes m fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive mcome if certain criteria are met; and

+  the company may irevocably designate a debl investment that meets the amoriised cost or FVTOCT ertena
as mcasured at FYTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an acc oumting rmismatch.

Amaortised cost and efTective interest method
The company s financial assels measured at amortised cost comprise ade and other recevables and cash and
cash equivalents.

The effective interest method i3 3 method of caleulating the amortized cost of a financial asset or liability and of
allocating interest meome or expense over the relevant period. The effiective inferest rate is the rate that exactly
discoumits estimated future cush receipls or paoments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective mterest rate, transaction costs and other premomns o discounts) excluding expected
credit losses through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or, where approgriate, a shorter period,
o the met carrying amount on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the fimancial assel is measured at initial
recogmiticn minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative smontsation using the effective interest method
of amy difference between that nital amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the
other hand, the gross camying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance,

Income i recegmised on an effective interest baziz for financial assets other than those financial assets classified
as FVTPL.

Forelgn exchange galns and losses

The canying amwoamt of fimancial azzets that are demominated in a foreign currency i determined in that foreign
currency and tramslated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period For financial assets measured at
amortized cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognised in the
income staterment and disclosed in note 5,
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

Impalrment of Minanclal assets

All debt-type financial assets which are not measured st FVTPL are assessed for impaimment at each reporting
date using a forward-locking approach by identifving ECLs, ECLs are defined as the difference between the
comtractual cash flows that are due in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the company expects
ioreceive, discounted at the original effective interesd rate.

As permitted by IFRS & mmpaimment provisions for trade receivables are recognised based on the simplified
approach within IFRS 9 using the lifetime expected credit losses, Durning this process the probability of the
non-pavment of the trade receivables is assessed using the single loss-rate approach

Impairment provisions for other finencel assels are recognised based on a forward looking ECL medel. The
methodology wsed to determine the amount of the provision is based on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial asset. For those where credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, twelve-month ECLs are recognised. For those where credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECLs are recognised.

For assels held al amortised cost, amy ECL is recognized in the income stalemenl with a corresponding
adjuztment to the asset’s canymg valee through a provision account. For assets held st FVTOCL, the loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve.

Based on analysis at the end of the reporting period, the mpairment on the company™s assets 1s considered to be
imeeaterial and no allowance has been recognised in the financial statements,

Derecognition of Mnancial assets

The company derecognises a financial asset only when the contracheal rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, of when it tranefers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assel 1o another entity, If the compary neither transfers nor cetains substantially all the rsk and reward of
ownership and continies (o control the translerred assel, the compary recogmises its relaimed mteres in the assel
and an associated lability for amounts it may have to pay. If the compamy retains substantially all the risk and
reward of ownership of a tiansferred finamcial assel, the company continues to recognise the lnanceal asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial azset {measured at amortised cost) in it entirety, the difference between the
assel’s camrying ameunt and the sum of the conzideration received and receivable is recognized in the income
statement. For fimancial assets at FVTOCT, the comulative gain or loss that had previously been acourmulated in
the mvesiment revaluation reserve is reclassified to the meome statement.

Om derecognition of a Financial asset other than in s entirety (e.g. when the company retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred assel or retains a residual interest that does not result in the retention of
substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership and the company retains control), the company allocates the
previous carying amounts of the financial asset between the part it continues to recogrise under continuing
invohvament, and the part it no longer recogrises on the basis of the relative far values of those parts on the date
of transfer.

On derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument which the company has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCT, the ammulative gain or loss previeusly accumwlated in the mvestment revaluation
reserve is nol reclaszified to the income atement, bt i3 transferred (o retained eamings,
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

Financial Habilities and equity Instruments

Dett anil equity instruments ssued by the company are classified as either financial liabilities or a5 equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a fmancial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity mstrument 15 ary contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deductmg
all of its liabilities. Equity instrurnents izsued by the company are recogmized at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue cosis.

Repurchase of the company’s own equity instruments is recognised ad deducted directly in equity. Mo gan or
los= 15 recognised i the income statement on the purchase, sabe, issue or cancellation of the compary's own
equity instruments.

Financial labilities

All financial liabilities are subzequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or
FVTPL.

Financial Habilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial lability 15 either a contingent consideration
acquired ina business combmation, held for trading, or it is designated as FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

= it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near temm; or

* on imitial recognition it 15 part of a portfolio of identified financial mstruments that the group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short tesm profit-taking; or

* it iz a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging metrument,

A finamcial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a

busimess combination may be designated as FVTPL upon initial recognition if’

+ such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement o recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise anise or

= the financial Lability forms part of a group of financial labilities, which is managed and it performance is
evaluated on a fur value basis, in accordance with the group's documented rsk management or investmeéil
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided imtemally on that basis; or

* it forms part of a contract containmg one of more embedded denvatives, and [FRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

The company does not have any liabilities held for trading nor bas it designated any financial liabilities as being
al FVTPL.

Chiher financial liabilities

Other financial lizbilities, inchuding bomrowings and trade and other payables, ane initially measured at far
value, net of transaction costs, Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective imterest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective vield basiz.
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2 Accounting policies {contined)

Forelgn exchange galns and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in & foreizn currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period. the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of
the instrumentz. These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized i the income statement for financial
liabilities that are not part of a designated hedgmg relationship. The fair value of financial lhabilities
denominated ina foreign currency s determined in that foreign curmency and translated at the spol rate at the
end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured at FVTPL, the forcign exchange
comgronent forms part of the fair value gains or losses and iz recognised in the income for Gnanceal liabilities
that are ned part of a designated hedging relationship.

Derecognition of Anancial liabilities

Financial liabilitiez are derecogmised only when the company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire, The difference between the carmying amount of the financial lability derecognized and the consideration
paid and payvable is recogmised inthe income staterment.

Reclassification of Minancial assels and liabilitics
Fmancial assets are reclassified under IFRS @ only when the company's business model for managing fimncial
assets changes. In this situation, all affected financial assets would be reclassified according to the basic
classification and measurement criteria of [FRS 2,

Financial liabilities cannot be reclassified under [IFES &,

Valuation techniques and sssumptions applied For the pur poses of measuring i value
The Fair values of fmancial assets and fimancial liabilties are determined az follows:

*  the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices (level 17

+  the fair valees of financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative insiruments) are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discoumted cash flow anabysis usmg prices
from observable curment market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments (level 27

+  the fair valies of financial assets and fmancial lmbilities derived from vahliation techniques that are not based
on ohservable market date (unobservab le market inputs) (*level 370

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities of the company are all determined at level 1 (2007; level 1),

Derivatives and hedging

The company uses derivative financial instruments to economically hedge its risk associated with foreign
exchange movements and to economically hedze against market price exposure with respect to certain seed
investments, It i3 not the company 's policy to trade in derivative instrumemtz. The company docs not designate
itz denvative instrument as a formal hedgimg mstruments and hedge accounting is net applied.

Derivatives are initially recognised at far value at the dele a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measred to their fair value at each statement of financial position date. The resulting gain or
lesz iz recogmised in the income statement ananediately.

A denvative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative far
value 15 recogmsed as a finmncial liabality. A derivative 15 presented as a non-cument assel oF @ non-curment

liability if the remaining matunty of the instrument is more than 12 months and it 15 not expected to be realised
or seftled within 12 months, Other derivatives are presented as current assets of currerd liabilities.
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

3 Critical accounting judgemenis and key sources of estimmation uncertainty

Imcome taxes

The company is subject to income tax and judgement 15 required in determining the provision for o, There are
mary tmnsactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertamn. The company
recogmises provisions for tax based on estimates of the taxes that are likely to become due. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded. such differences will impact the current
ingoime tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made,

Full details are set out m note 6,

4 Revenue

The company's revenue relates wholly to the provision of mvestment munagement of mubel funds and
assodiated services. The table below presents the compary's revenue for 2018 and 2017, and disaggregates
investment advisory, administration and distnibution fees by investment style. See note 2, Accounting Policies,
o further information on the company ‘s revenue recommition policy and adoption of IFRS 15,

Restated

2018 2017

5 00y F L]
Cash management $038 4033
Equity 520 789
Fioed moome 2 584 2 07g
Multi-asset 5970 5.484
Total revenue 14,114 13,284

The followiang table provides information about contract as=ets and recevables from contracts with customers,
31 December 31 December

2018 207
5 (M) £ Oy
Coniract assels z3m 1,702

The confract assets relate to the comparny's conditional rights to consideration For services, primsarily relating to
acerued income for unbilled services, These are disclosed as sccrued meome in note 9.

Transaction price allocated to remaining per formance obligations

Smee the company recognises revene as services are performed, which comesponds te the amount to which it
haz a right to mvoice, it has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of [FRS 15 ind docs not disclose
information relating to its remaining performance obligations.
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

5 Operating profit
Arrived at after charging

28 27
5 000 £ iy
Foreign exchange losses 16 1

6 Incoms fax

The company is subject 1o Lixembourg corporate moome tax, municipal business tax and net wealth tax, The
charge allocated to the company as part of the fiscal unity to which it forms a part of, representing corporate
income tax and mumicipal buziness tax iz shown below:

2018 2017
5 iy £ iy
Current taxation
Lauxembourg corporation tax 237 20
Laembourg corporation tax adjustments in respect of prior periods (&) (7h
153 213

The tax on profit before tax for the year is lower than (2017: lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in
Laucembourg of 26,0126 (2017; 27.08%),

il B 207
5 000 & (i
Profit before tax 715 1.014
Corporation tax at standard rate 186 275
Increase from effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable
profit (tax loss) . 2
Increase (decrease) in curment tax from unrecognised foreign exchange
gams or losses fromi tax balance sheet revaliation 51 (57)
Decreasze in cumrent tax froem adjustments in respect of prior periods (82 (7}
Total tax charge 153 213
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

T Interests in unconsolidated structured entities

The company manages investment funds which are considered 1o be stnectured entities within the definition of
[FRS 12, Structured entities are not consolidated as the comparny does not have “control™ as defined under JFRS
18 Consclidkged Finemcial Statements. The companry receives an interest in these unconsolidated structured
entities through the receipt of investment advisory, administration and distribution fees from related parties. The
unconsolidated struchured entities are constituted as open-ended imvestment companies.

The unconsolidated structured entities have individual investment objectives and policies and are subject to the
termes aid conditions of their respective offering documentation, However, all unconsolidated structured entities
invest capital primarily from third-party investors in a pontfolio of assels in order to provide a retum 1o those
investons from capital appreciation of those asselz, income from those assets, of both. Accordmgly, they are
susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about fisture vabues of the asset they hold,

The uncensolidated structured entitics are fimanced through cquity capital provided by investors. Additionalky,
the company holds an mvestment m the BlackRock Global Investment Seres Super Money Market Fund of
SR14k (201 7: 3801K). Scenote § for details,

The fees received during the year to 31 December 2018, in relation to the above, were 314,105k (2017:
£13.269%:* ) The camying value on the staterment of financial position as at 31 December 2018 15 32,301k {2017:
§1,702K), as represented by trade debtors and accrued income,

The AUM of the comparyy 8z al 31 December 2018 was 52 2bn (2017: 2. 3bm),
*armoats relating (o 201 7 have been restated as outlined in note 17.

Maximum exposure (o loss
The comparny's macdnmim exposure bo loss associated with its interest in these unconsolidated structured entities
i5 lEmited to the amounts shown above,

Financial support
“The company has not provided financial support to any of its unconsolidated stuctured emities duning the vear,
anil has no contractual obligations or current intention of providing financial support in the fiuture.

Other Information

There are no differences 1o the economic or veling rights attachmg to the equity held by the company from those
held by other investors, There are no lguichty arrangements, guaratee: or other commitments that may affect
thee Fair value or risk of the compamy's interest m the unconsolidated smctured entities.

8 Financial asseis

2ins 2017
& 0y £ iy
MNon-current fnancial assets
Available for sale financial assets 814 311
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MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

8  Financial assefs (continued)

Movement in available for sale assels

Clost

AL Tarary
Additions

Al 31 December
Carrying amount

At 31 December

208 m7
£ 000 5 iy
8l o4
13 7
214 01
814 801

Available for sale financial assets represent the company's holdings in the BlackRock Global Investment Series
Super Money Market Fund, as outhned innote 7. Additions represent remvested distribistions,

9 Trade and other receivables

Feceivables due from related parties

Accrued income
Other receivables

All trade and other receivables are due within one year.

10 Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash at bank

11 Share capital

Allotted, called up and Tully paid shares

Ordinary shares of $12.50 each

208 2m7
g iy iy
336 242
T30 1,702
- 4
2637 1,948
2018 2m7
g 000 £ iy
3411 3820
2018 27
No. (10 AL M, (W) £ 000
40 00 A0 ik
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

12 Other reserves

Legal reserve
Luxembourg companies are required to appropriate to the legal reserve 3 minimum of 324 of the annual net
imeosne, after deducting amy losses brought foeward, until such reserve equals 10% of subzcribed capital.

This reserve may not be distributed, in the form of cash dividends or etherwise, during the life of the company.

Mo allocations were made in 2017 or 2008 as the maxinuen S50k had already been reached, This reserve is
included as other reserves in the statement of fnancial position,

MNet Wealth Tax Reserve

‘The members" general meeting has ratified the creation of a special net wealth tax reserve in order to reduce the
net wealth tax payvable by the comparmy. This special reserve amounts to five times the envisaged net wealth tax
credit. This special net wealth tax reserve has to remam unavailable for distnibution for five years to take
advantage of the reduction i net wealth tax liability, This reserve is included as other reserves in the statement
of financial position.

Drring the vear, amounts totalling $128% (2017: $124k) were allocaied to the net wealth tax reserve.

Additionally. smounts tetallmg $125k (2017: $45k) relating to amounts transferred pre 2004 were released from
the net wealth tae reserve to retamed camings.

The net wealth tax reserve ol 31 December 2018 amounted to S482k (2007; $479%).

13 Trade and other payables

2018 207

S 000 £ 00
Orther creditors iz E¥)
Amounts due torelated partics 1,185 1,453
1,223 1494

All trade and other pavables are due within one vear.
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14 Financial instruments

Financial assets
Derivative financia assels o fofr valie through profit or boss lreld for trading
Carrying value
2018 27
5 004 ERLU
Forward foreign exchange contracls 1 1

2ME
F My

Fair value

2007
§ (i)

Vierlwation methiods and aistmpiioes

The far values of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices and therefore categorized as level 1

securities in the Fair value hierarchy.

Al the statement of financial position date, foreign exchange forward contracts were in place to hedge the
transactional foreign exchange exposure of the entity, These forwards have a tenor of less than ooe month.

Financtal aizels of amortived cost
Carrying value Fair valie
2018 2017 2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000 L 00 L 000
Cash and cash equivalents 1411 3.8 3411 3820
Trade and other recemvables 2.637 1,948 2,637 1,548
6,08 5768 6,048 2768
Viefrsestion methodds cned ausimpliony

Trade and other receivables:

Trade receivables are typically settled in a short tme frame. As a result, the fair value of these balances is
comsidered to be materially equal to the carmying value, after taking into account ECLs. At the statement of
financial position date, no allowance has been recognised for impainment of trade and other receivables as ECLs

are considered to be immaterial.
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MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

14 Financial instruments {contimued)

Financial Habilities
Financid Habiliies of anortised cost
Carrying value Fair value
2018 2017 2% 207
5 004 ERLU 5 0pp 5 ey
Trade and other pavables 1,223 1490 1,223 1490
Vierlwation methiods and aistmpiioes
Trade and other pavables:

Trade payables are typically settled in a shon time frame. As a result, the fair value of these balances is
considered to be materially equal to the camying valwe, after taking into account potential impaimment losses.

15 Financial risk mamagement and impairment of fnancial assels

The company is exposed to the following risks from itz use of financial nstruments:
= eredit risk:

= liquadity risk; and

= market risk

Credit risk and impairment

Credit nisk arises in relation to accounts receivable, surplus cash held in bank accounts or held on account with
other BlackRock group comgpanies as part of normal treasury operations, and other asset nvestments, The risk
of default in relation to accounts receivable anising from fee income debtors is considered low and the company
minimises exposme o credit risk with respect to accounts receivable by actively pursuing settlement of
outstanding management for involces and performance fees within the terms and conditions of the undertying
agreement. Intercompany balances are managed centrally and agreed upon and settled on a regular basis.

The carrying amount of finawial assels disclosed in the statement of financial pesition represents the compamy's
mExImLm exposure to credit risk as no collateral or credit enhancementsz are held,

The company may in some situations be exposed to concentration of credit nsk due bo exposure (o some large
cliests. These clients donot have extermal credit ratimgs.
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MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

15 Financial risk management and impairment of Mnancal assets (contimued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss credit risk exposure and management

Derivative financial aosels af Sur valve Srough profit and foss held for troding

Maxinmm  Provision for

2018 amount of doubiful C’T;'l:f
ExXposure dehi

B000 S000 bALCH]

Foreigmn exchange forward contracts 1 - 1

Moaxinmm  Provision for

2017 wmount of doubtful C“:ﬂ:f
EXposiure debt

S000 S0 S0

Foreign exchange forward contracts | - |

At the statement of fnancial position date, foreign exchange forward contracts were in place to hedee the
transactional foreign exchange exposure of the entity, These forwards have a tenor of less than one month,

Lo aned peceivalles creal risk expostire coud m@iagement
Maximmm  Provision for

018 arrioannl of diouibyi fial C“:’:,'I:E
eXposure debi
000 S000 000
Cazh amd cash equivalents 3411 - 3411
Trade and other receivables 2637 - 2,637
6,048 = &, 048
Maxinmm  Provision for Carryin
2017 amount of doubtful &
value
EXPOSUre debt
B000 S0 SO0
Cash anid cash equivalents 3820 - 3,820
“Trade and other recenvables 1,948 . 1,948
5,768 - 5,768

Collegteraal held v security amnd otfer delt e nfiance ety
The comparry does not hold amy collateral as security or any other credit enhancemenls.
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MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

15 Financial risk management and impairment of Mnancal assets (contimued)

Ciredit rading analysis

Standard & Poor's credit ratings have been wsed to determine the credit quality of the entity's cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables. Cash at bank is rated AA- and trade and other receivables are not
rated.

Financial assels at amoriised cost
Carryving Carrying Carrying

value of valie of value of Pre Impairment
018 Iterns nefther items past items past  Impairment  recogndsed to
pasi due mor  duebut nod due and'or value date
ipaired immpaired impaired
5000 S000 S000 SO0 000
Loans and receivables 048 - - 6,048 -

Carrving Carrving Carrving

value of vahie of value of Pre  Impairment
017 items neither items past items past  impairment  recognised to
past due mor  doe bul not due and'or value date
Ingaired Impaired Impalred

000 S000 000 000 SO0

Loans and receivables
5,768 . - 5,768 .
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5. A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

15 Financial risk management and impairment of Mnancal assets (contimued)

Market risk
Market risk iz the nisk that the company s capital and'or eamings may be impacted by changes in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and security prices.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises where the compamy’s foreign cumency assets are nol matched by liabilities
demominated in the same curency. The company derives revenes from investment advisory, adminiration and
distribution fees denominated in US dollar, Expenses are mainly denominated in euro and as a consequence the
company s reveries may Nuctiuste as a resilt of euro and US dollar exchange movenments.

Forelgn currency exposures are monitored regularly and minrmised. Forelgn curmrency exposures that anse in
relation to non-operational 1tems are usually large in natre and are managed on a case-by-case basis. Forcign
currency exposures relating to mtercompary pavables and receivables with other BlackRock group entities are
managed utilising foreign exchange forward contracts,

Sensitivity analvsis

The sensitivity analysis covers the financial instrnenents at each of the ststement of financial position dates and
assumes changes i market variables, It should however be noted that due to the mherent uncerainty in world
fmancial markets, the assumgtions made may differ significantly from the aciual cutcome particularly as merket
risks tend to be nterdependent and are therefore unlikely to move in isolation.

Furo exchange rates are assumed to increase of decrease by 20%a 2096 is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk intemally to key management persommel and represents msanagement’s
assezsmient of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

If the euro exchange rate strenethened by 2004, profit and equity would decrease by 341k,
If the euro exchange rate weakened by 2004, profit and equity would increase by $45k

Page 31

181/284



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

16 Related party transactions

The transacticns with related parties that occurred during the vear related to service charges with other entities

comrolled by the ultimate parent undertaking,
Income and receivaldes lrom related parties

2018
Amounts receivable from related party

2017
Amounis receivable from related party

Expenditure with and payables to related parties

2018
Outsoureed investment management and refrocessions
Other cxpenses

Amounts pavable Lo related party

2017
Outsoireed investment management services and retrocessions
Other expenses

Amounts payable to related party

Parent
& 000

Fellow
subsidiaries
2 0

334

Fellow
suibsl dinries
LY

Fellow
subsidiaries
£ iy

14,278

14377
1.18%

Fellow
subsidinries
£ 0o

8820

102

892

172

1.281

There were no loans to the manager or board of directors or any other related party during the vear,
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BlackHock Fund Management Company 5.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

17 Restatement of comparatives

As outlined in note 2, the company has adopted IFRS 15 in these financial statements, with the prior period
restated in accordance with 145 § Accounting Policies, Changes in Accownting Extimeges and Frrors, The
following table smnarises ihe impact of these restatements on the figures presented within the income

statement,
For the year ended 2017 Prévhanty:  Adustmnt

reporied iy Restated

£ 000 £ (1M £000

Revenue 1,149 12,135 13,284
Cost of sales " {12,135) {12135}
Gress profit 1,149 1,149
Administrative expenses (145) (145}
Operating profit 10084 10404

{1} For the period ended 31 December 2017, reveme was presented net of investment management and
administration services charges and refrocessions from other group companies. As outlmed in note 2, under
IFRS 15, revenue is presented gross, There has been no impact on the operating profit,

18 Parent and wtimate parent undertaking

The company’s immediate holding company is BlackRock Group Limited - Luxembourg Branch and the
ultimate parent company and controlling party is BlackRock, Inc. a comgany incorporated in the State of
Delaware in the United States of Amerwca. The parent compamy of the largest and smallest group that includes
the compary and for which group accounts are prepared is BlackRogk, Ine. Copies of the group fnancial
statements are available upon request from the Investor Relations website at www. blackrock.com or requests
may be addressed to Investor Relations at 55 East 52nd Street, New Yook, NY 10055, USA or by anml at

invrekith lackrock com.
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@
BlackRock Asset Management lreland Limited
2018 12 125,000 1,723
2019 31
137.82
1995 19
BlackRock, Inc.
(¢
2019 24 3,500
G
State Street Bank Luxembourg S.C.A.
2019 65,001,137.50 79 1,324
2019 31
121.74
4
J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A.
2018 12 17,376,810 19 33
1973
€ BlackRock

Operations (Luxembourg) S.a r.1

2019 2,623,500 1,938
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(6
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited
2018 11 94,484,948 130
¢
2019 8,000
(8
2019 87,550
€

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited

2019 2,039,558
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¢!

BlackRock Asset Management lreland Limited

(¢

3
State Street Bank Luxembourg S.C.A.

¢

2013

http://www.statestreet.com/about/office-locations/luxembourg/subcustodians.html
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4
J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A.

€] BlackRock
Operations (Luxembourg) S.a r.1

(6
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited

BlackRock (Channel Islands)
Limited 1972 10

7

C
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©

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
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1915 1915 10
1993 1993
2010 2010 12 17
2007 13
2011 2011 61
2013 12
2009 65 78 2010 159
2009 65 2010
2010
2010 16
2009 65
2010 15
2009 65

2014 23 2014 91
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25 1915
1983 25 85 611
1988 30
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2001 107 2001 108
2007 13 2007
1991
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2010
2009 13 2009 65
2009 65
2010
° 2011 2010
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e 2011 2002 2010
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o 2011 2010
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° 2013 15
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° 2016 18
2016 10 2016
e 2015 12 18
2016 438 2016 24
2016 10 13
° 14 587 2016 10 13
16 644
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e 2010
° 2010
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2016 438
2016 10 13
2018
°
2016 18
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To the Unitholders of BlackRock Global Investment Series

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the "Fund")
and each of its sub-funds, which comprise the Statement of Net Assets and the Portfolio of
Investments as at 31 January 2018 and the Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of BlackRock Global Investment Series as at 31 January 2018, and of the
results of its operations and changes in its net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the "Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier" (CSSF).

Our responsibilities under those Law and standards are further described in the
"Responsibilities of Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Financial Statements"
section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information

The Board of Directors of the Management Company of the Fund is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report
but does not include the financial statements and our report of Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
concluded that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regards.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Management Company of the Fund and Those
Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Management Company of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg
legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the
Management Company of the Fund determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Management Company of
the Fund is responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Management Company of the Fund
either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a
report of Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company of the Fund.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors of the Management Company of the
Fund®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the
Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Christian van Dartel, Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
Partner

25 May 2018
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To the Unitholders of

BlackRock Global Investment Series

35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the* Fund” )
and of each of its sub-funds, which comprise the statement of net assets and the portfolio
of investments as at 31 January 2019 and the statement of operations and changes in net
assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund and of each of its sub-funds as at 31 January 2019, and of
the results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs are further described in the

“ Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information stated in the annual report but
does not include the financial statements and our report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management Company for the
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company is responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue a report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with I1SAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted
for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the
Fund®s Management Company;

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the
Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern;

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Justin Griffiths, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

23 May 2019
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.
Independent Auditor®s Report

To the sole Shareholder of
BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A., which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the income statement,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A. as at 31 December 2018, and
of its financial performance and of its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the* Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under those Law and standards are further described in the

“ Responsibilities of the* Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the Company in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.
Independent Auditor®s Report

Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information stated in the annual report but does not include the financial
statements and our report of the" Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and for such
internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A."s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the* Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a
report of the" Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.
Independent Auditor®s Report

As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the BlackRock
Fund Management Company S.A."s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report of
the" Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the
“ Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” . However, future events or conditions may cause the
BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A. to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The management report is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Justin Griffiths, Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
Partner

3 May 2019
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